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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – JULY 23, 2009

(Time Noted – 7:00 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of this Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all of the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. Then the Board will then consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications tonight; but the Board may take up to 62 days to reach a determination. And I would ask if anyone has a cell phone to please turn the cell phone off so that we won't be interrupted. And also when speaking, speak directly into the microphone because it is being recorded. There's a microphone in the center and there's another microphone over on this side. I'd also like to inform you that the Members of the Board have visited all of sites that we will be discussing this evening. Also if anyone is here concerning the Brian Barbera application that has been withdrawn. I have a letter here. 'We represent Brian Barbera in his application to this Board for a Special Permit, which is on the Zoning Board agenda for Thursday, July 23, 2009. We wish to advise you that Mr. Barbera withdraws his application for a Special Permit. Thank you for your courtesies. Elizabeth Strader.'  Roll call. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY







DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

ALSO PRESENT: 
BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

GERALD CANFIELD, FIRE INSPECTOR 

    



(Time Noted – 7:02 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JULY 23, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:02 PM) 



SANTHA CONSTRUCTION 

5 MADISON ROSE COURT, NBGH 







(7-2-9) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the maximum height to build a front porch on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant Santha Construction.               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, July 14th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday July 15th. The applicant sent out eleven registered letters, nine were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. LoBiando: Good evening. Anthony LoBiando, LoBiando Law Offices, 5031 Route 9W, Newburgh, N.Y. on behalf of the applicant Santha Construction. I'm here tonight with the principal, Giri Nimbekai and essentially we're seeking an area variance because of a discrepancy in the as is now completed or 95% completed house that exceeds the Town requirement of 35 feet. The house was initially planned to be 32 feet but unfortunately due to what we believe are excavation and engineering errors that were not contemplated nor discovered until too late in the process we now exceed the 35 foot Town requirement, 35. Just as a little background, we believe essentially what happened was the house was not actually put where it was originally planned. Initially the house was to be another 15 feet closer to the road. I understand that all of the Members have visited the site and as you know it’s a very steep hill going uphill. And the idea was to bring the house closer to the frontage of the street, Madison Rose Court. In addition, the excavator had indicated to us despite moving the location that he'd be able to backfill the front of the house and we also assumed that the house would have been put deeper into the property at that location. So here we are. We tried to mitigate the discrepancy by putting the retaining wall that you would have observed in front of the house. It’s a two-stage retaining wall, the first level is up to 7 feet at certain points and the second is up to 5 feet. However it still doesn't solve the problem we're still over the maximum height. I will note that this is not a self-created problem. We did rely on the expertise and the advice of our engineer and excavator. I would also note that there is pending litigation right now with respect to at least the excavator however that's not going to solve our problem. My clients have invested well over a half a million dollars in this project. They're 95% completed and there is no other avenue of redress other than having this area variance. If there's any questions I invite the Board. I did bring a plan of the proposed front porch area that if granted we'll build in that location. The house has beautiful views. I saw the inside of the house. Actually my client that is with me tonight owns the house for sale behind this particular house and in no way is that house's view obstructed at all by the exceeding the height maximum in this case. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: I have several. 

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Hughes.

Mr. Hughes: I would like to see what you intend to put on the front of it. You said you have some sort of rendition of the front porch? And I'd like some comments from the Building Department if they had anything to say about this how it evolved to this. You're like 9 feet over what you're supposed to be. I find it kind of hard to believe that nobody caught this before you were putting the framing up and the roof on. 

Mr. LoBiando: (Approached the easel with drawings) This sketch shows the front house and if you recall from the location the driveway would be to the right of the sketch and the sidewalk would lead from the driveway to the front of the house. The lower area is where the retaining wall is and the cement sidewalk would lead to a walkway. There would be a two-stage structure up to a two-step to a platform and then up approximately eight steps to a nice front porch area. 

Mr. Hughes: Is this the area that you're depicting on that drawing where the front porch is going to come up to?

Mr. LoBiando: Yes it is, Mr. Hughes.

Mr. Hughes: So tell me, how did we get 10 feet over the top of what we're supposed to have? 

Mr. Canfield: Jerry Canfield, Code Compliance Department. In speaking with the Building Department today, Joe Mattina, it was the Building Department that caught this and that's why this application is here. So I don't think it is accurate to say that it was an oversight of the Building Department. It was picked up at the time that they went to submit for the porch Permit and the elevations of the porch, which I believe the porch roof is like 18 feet, is actually what, raised concern…what was the overall height of the building. 

Mr. Hughes: Its 44 and change. It's supposed to be 35 max.

Mr. Canfield: 35 max, that's correct. I'd also might add that later on in the agenda there's a similar application. The Building Department has enacted a new provision, which now calls for a certified plot plan upon backfilling of the foundation so these applications will not come before you in a completed state. If there's a discrepancy of where the contractor, the engineer, the excavator has located the foundation it would be caught much earlier on. It's very difficult for the Inspector to go to the site without seeing the actual stakes of where the house belongs unless it's very close. In this case, the footage was there for the yard, front and rear yard. It did not appear to be a problem but the problem was because the house got pushed back further actually not in the location of the original footprint of where it was supposed to be. So the Building Department's idea of requiring a certified plot plan at the time of the footings, or excuse me, the foundation being poured or constructed at least it will be early enough and on in the stage that we can identify that the house is exactly where it is and the elevations of the starting point of what they're supposed to be. 

Ms. Drake: So that plot plan will have elevations on it then?

Mr. Canfield: Yes, it should have finished floor on top of walls.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: So it'll give you a good starting point…

Ms. Drake: Thank you.

Mr. Canfield: …for the construction.

Mr. Hughes: I have another question if you would? Where do you measure the median line of the grade on this building to establish your height if it…you've got multiple levels here, as I see it, as it sits on the hill? Are you measuring from the main floors floor?

Mr. Canfield: What you take is an average grade, the average down on the street side.

Mr. Hughes: I know normally but on this project where are you measuring? 

Mr. Canfield: Basically the same that's where the zoning applies, the average grade on the street side which the highest point, I believe, is the street side of the structure.

Mr. LoBiando: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Is this a spec house?

Mr. LoBiando: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: It is? And there's nobody living there now obviously at present and he owns the building adjacent to it as well in this?

Ms. Gennarelli: Anthony, I'm sorry, could you use the microphone?

Mr. LoBiando: Yes, that's correct, Mr. Hughes.

Mr. Hughes: And the other building has a problem as well, Jerry? Is this the other building you were talking about? 

Mr. LoBiando: No no that has nothing with my client. 

Mr. Hughes: So the buildings that this guy is involved with this is the only one that has a problem? 

Mr. LoBiando: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: How many spec houses are you building in that neighborhood, sir?

Mr. Nimbekai: Three houses. My name is Giri Nimbekai. So three houses we build in the sub-division but two…one already has somebody is living in the house that has a C. of O., the second one we are close to getting a C. of O. They all meet the height requirements. This was due to, you know, the excavator's mistake. He told us when he backfilled everything would be O.K. but until the house was almost completed that's when we realized, you know, this is the problem. Otherwise we would not have gone so forward putting so much money up there. 

Mr. Hughes: Well, I don't know, maybe I'm not looking at the same way you are but if that is 45 feet whether you put it here on the hill or there on the hill its still 45 feet tall.

Mr. Nimbekai: I agree with you.

Mr. Hughes: It's a nice story but it doesn't add up to me. The building didn't grow because you pushed it up the hill or down the hill.

Mr. LoBiando: There are pictures attached to our application and if I may I have the originals. 

Mr. Hughes: Well it’s a little late in the game to be showing those.

Mr. LoBiando: Well I'm just trying to address your issue Mr. Hughes. If you take a look at the photo again attached to our application…

Mr. Hughes: We've been out there. We've all been out there.

Mr. LoBiando: So the house, the backfill should be up to this area. The front door should be graded to the front yard so if the house had been sunk down as intended then you would have the proper…  

Mr. Maher: Yeah, but whether you push it back or forward it really…you're saying it was too far forward?

Mr. LoBiando: Because of the grading, yes.

Mr. Maher: But you said the house was too close to the road, correct?

Mr. LoBiando: It's actually too far back from the road right now. 

Mr. Maher: So it was pushed back further?

Mr. LoBiando: It should have been closer to the road, which would have given probably sufficient grading at that location.  

Mr. Maher: It appears, if it was closer to the road how would you get the pitch for your driveway? It wouldn't lessen the pitch it would make it more difficult to get the pitch because you have a smaller turn area there. I'm curious as to how that would make it better bringing it closer to the road.

Mr. LoBiando: I think it’s a question of the excavation. I think it’s a question of whether or not the area that again if you can see the photograph the house was intended to walk out your front door and…

Mr. Maher: No, I'm familiar with that. Then I guess my question would be, Jerry I'm sorry, on this particular house on the left hand side where the garage is…obviously you couldn't backfill by the garage…does the left hand side of the house where the garage doors are rising up meet the same feet, the requirement 35-foot? Because if it doesn't obviously it would miss you there but you couldn't backfill it regardless.

Mr. Canfield: You can't… (Inaudible) …around the property.  

Mr. Maher: Right, but my point is, would it meet…does that front corner of the house meet the 35 foot requirement?

Ms. Gennarelli: Jerry, excuse me, could you use the microphone? Thank you.

Mr. Canfield: I can't say for sure, Mike, I don't have the elevations and the actual dimensions. 

Mr. Maher: Do you have the same picture we do? 

Mr. Canfield: I only have the pictures. They're not to scale.

Mr. Maher: O.K. I wasn't sure. I'm just curious, you know, when you look at that front corner there obviously you can't backfill there and if in fact it does meet the 35 foot it’s a mute point regardless because it couldn't have been built that way to begin with.

Mr. Hughes: I have something else here too. I see what you're saying, Mr. LoBiando, about where you would like to have it buried up to but if that was the intention they wouldn't have had the electric meter at the corner of the building and they wouldn't have had siding on all that there. You've got another 8 feet. I don't follow it. 

Mr. LoBiando: Mr. Hughes that was done afterwards to try to deal with the problem. There was never an intention to have this house exceed the maximum. All of the houses that my client built are frankly identical. They've all met the same height maximum. 

Mr. Hughes: And they're all 45 feet tall?

Mr. LoBiando: No, they're all under 35.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, O.K.

Mr. Manley: What would the applicant be willing to do to perhaps mitigate some of the life safety issues that I maybe would have some concerns with...with a home, you know, almost 50 feet in height, obviously the bedrooms are on the second floor? To me that creates a safety of, you know, exit of the home let's say one of the stairways were blocked with fire and the occupants could not exit normally and they had to use the window to get out what type of features or what is the applicant willing to demonstrate to do that they meet certain life safety issues to get the people out of the house?

Mr. LoBiando: Would you like to address that?

Mr. Nimbekai: I went to a builder's show in Florida, there is a ladder that you can build in the wall, you know, that people can use to get down through fire window that can be installed in one of the bedrooms.

Mr. Manley: O.K. And how many bedrooms, because I obviously didn't go into the house…?

Mr. Nimbekai: There's four bedrooms.

Mr. Manley: Are all four bedrooms on the second floor?

Mr. Nimbekai: Yes sir.   

Mr. Manley: And how many bedrooms face the front where the highest elevation is?

Mr. Nimbekai: Two of them.

Mr. Manley: Two of the four?

Mr. Nimbekai: Yes.

Mr. Manley: O.K. that's all I have for now. Thank you.  

Mr. LoBiando: Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If so, please state your name and address. Are there any other questions from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: I have a question if I may?

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: This is a hip roof all the way around that's why I only have three elevations of the roof in its entirety. There's a couple of peaks out on the front but the basic coverage of the basic part of the building is a hip roof where it comes on all sides where there's a couple of peaks, is that not so?

Mr. LoBiando: I believe you are correct. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Jerry, any methodologies to knock the tops off of those apexes and bring it down a little bit? And I have another question too, this is a physical comment but I would like to know if the Fire Chief and I believe that's in Middlehope, do they have any equipment to reach 45 feet up there? And, if so have you received any condemnations or commendations from the Fire Chief about this project? 

Mr. Canfield: That's a multi-pointed question but to start with the Middlehope Fire District which I'm familiar with, I've been a member there thirty-seven years, they do have means to reach the peak of this roof. They have 100-foot ladder truck. Second point of the question, have they been asked to give opinion on this? The answer is no. They have not.

Mr. Hughes: I think I'd feel more safe though…and there's a third part too…but I think I'd feel more comfortable if I knew what the fireman had to say about this or someone that inspects the safety in conjunction with the fire people. That driveway, I don't know how you can get a big truck in there and move it around to get close enough even with a 100-footer to reach out and be able to save somebody. It's…to me it's very critical.  

Chairperson Cardone: Are you suggesting that we keep the Public Hearing open? 

Mr. Hughes: I would think so until we get a response from both safety and the fire company.  

Mr. Canfield: You're asking for a written response from the jurisdictional department? Is that what you're asking?

Mr. Hughes: I would like to see an emergency plan to reach this place with fire trucks and if the ladder truck was necessary…how they think they're going to get at it. I mean I…

Mr. Donovan: Ron, my comment on that would be that, you know, the application before us is for a height variance so presumably this was created by a Planning Board approved sub-division so that access should have been determined at that time and really isn't, well maybe certainly important if there's a fire there, the application before us is for a height variance and so the ability of the fire company to put out a fire of a 45-foot structure would be germane, I don't know how much we can extend our jurisdiction to the access issue.

Mr. Hughes: Well I'm not looking to extend our jurisdiction but I think you said it in the beginning of your statement if they approved it they approved it for a 35-foot building not a 45-foot building.

Mr. Donovan: Well, they approved the sub-division not the house construction which is…

Mr. Hughes: They know the limits within the construction at 35-feet.

Mr. Canfield: Well, just if I may, counsel? The Planning Board approved something that was compliant with the zoning as presented, which was 35-feet. O.K.? Just for clarification.

Mr.. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: If not, then it would have been referred to you for a height variance, at that time they didn't about it.

Mr. Hughes: Well…

Mr. Canfield: As far as…if I can continue, well also as far as accessibility with jurisdictional fire department, at the Planning Board level, the sub-divisions are reviewed for fire protection and accessibility. Even though this building did get pushed back, again I'm not speaking for the jurisdictional Fire Chief. I'm not chief now, I have been for five years in that district. I've been chairman of the board; I've been a member thirty-seven years I know a little bit about the fire fighting capabilities of that department. Because the building has been pushed back it will not impede any accessibility issues however we can only require what the New York State Building Code will require or allow us to require. When you're dealing with one and two family dwellings the building code, the fire code is less restrictive than, of course, dealing with a commercial building or something that has many more occupants in it. Not to take single-families any less important they're not but my point is is that building and fire codes are less restrictive so therefore the perimeters of what is acceptable for something like this is like you say the jurisdiction of the local department if they have any special needs or lack thereof to protect something of this caliber. I can tell you from my experience that they do have the equipment. The height would not create an issue for you. And again, I will re-ask with that being said, do you still want to hear from the jurisdictional department? And that's just a matter of if you do I will contact them and look for something, typically it should come from the board of Fire Commissioners though not the Fire Chief because the board of Fire Commissioners is who precedes over the fire district. The chief answers to the Board of Commissioners so if that's what you wish I will can do that as well. 

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for answering those questions. Counsel, I have some questions if…

Mr. Donovan: I have some answers hopefully they're to your questions.

Mr. Hughes: Is there any where we can take this by doing so…by keeping the Public Hearing open and making sure we've got it covered because if the building is blocked and the boom can't get down to extend out because of the steepness there where the truck parks you're done. There's water in that sub-division? Town water? There's not. It's all on wells so there's no option for a sprinkler?

Mr. Donovan: Now, if you're question is, do you have the ability to refer this to the fire…to the board of Fire Commissioners for comment given that the nature of the variance is a height variance? And you're concern is being able to fire fight it with the extent of the height? Then the answer to that is absolutely. If the Board is inclined to say we want input from the fire department before we make the determination then you can certainly do that.

Mr. Hughes: Well that's up to the Board.

Mr. McKelvey: I think Ron's right though because getting that truck up close is going to be tough.

Mr. Hughes: I don't know how you're going to get a 100-footer in there and still be able to make a maneuver and the execution without chopping off another house.

Mr. Manley: You haven't seen Jerry Canfield drive that?

Mr. Hughes: Fortunately not, I guess.

Mr. Canfield: I drive that ladder also.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. good. I have no more. Thank you and thank you.

Mr. Canfield: Just if I can clarify one other point. You had mentioned because there is not Town water doesn't mean that you cannot have sprinkler system. That's not an accurate statement. There are systems that do employ a pump, a reserve tank.

Mr. Hughes: Reservoir, sure.

Mr. Canfield: Reservoir, O.K., the intent of those requirements are to maintain a sustained flow for a given period of time. O.K. so that can be achieved with a well and a pump and a tank.

Mr. Hughes: Well maybe that's an option here if you want to be able to mitigate this thing because 10-feet is a lot and again if this is 45-feet tall whether its here or up on the hill its still 45-feet tall.

Mr. Canfield: Just explaining your options.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you. And thank you.

Mr. Manley: Jerry, with regard to commercial buildings in the Town how many story's generally before it would require sprinklers in the Town of Newburgh? For commercial structures?

Mr. Canfield: The Town of Newburgh has a more restrictive sprinkler ordinance than New York State Fire Prevention Building Code requires. We enacted that back in the middle 90's which I helped co-author. It applies to all commercial structures and is not regulated by building height. It is regulated by square footage essentially the footprint and it's for all commercial occupancies with the exception of office occupancies under 2500 sq. ft.

Mr. Manley: So…the trigger is in excess of 2500 sq. ft. 

Mr. Hughes: Or multi-uses.

Mr. Canfield: Commercial occupancies, that's correct.

Mr. Hughes: What about multi-use if there's apartments upstairs, isn't that another?

Mr. Canfield: A residential occupancy such as an apartment building is deemed as a commercial occupancy.

Mr. Hughes: No, what if the apartment is above a commercial or a business?

Mr. Canfield: It’s a commercial occupancy it's (Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: So it requires a sprinkler?

Mr. Canfield: That's correct. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: That's correct.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.

Mr. LoBiando: Just one further comment to Mr. Hughes' concerns regarding the Fire Department, I would note that the driveway is plenty wide enough. My car got up the driveway no problem. The fire truck would have absolutely no problem as I think Mr. Canfield expressed his opinions of getting up number one of the driveway and number two having plenty of room once you reached the area where the garage is located. And the rear of the house is not at all affected by this height concern. And as I understand it the purpose of the ordinance that we're talking about only affects the frontage of the house. Should this house had been built the opposite and the house was 50-feet in the rear, if it was built down the hill we wouldn't be talking, it would not be a concern. It would not be a concern. This Board would have no concerns about that. It just happens to be flipped around and therewith lies the problem because we're up against the frontage of the house. So if the house had been 55-feet I think you could still raise the same safety concerns but it wouldn't apply to it. Correct? I have nothing further. Thank you. 

Mr. Maher: Let me just clarify, so Jerry if…the rear of the structure doesn't have to be 35-foot or under?

Mr. Donovan: If you look at the definition of building height…Jerry so maybe I…I could save you a trip…its defined as follows: the vertical distance measured from the average elevation of the finished grade along the side of structure fronting on the nearest street to the highest point of such structure. 

Mr. Maher: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: So average grade of the main floor?

Mr. Donovan: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: So we have 45-feet on all four corners no matter how you look at it. It's just sunk in the ground. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any further questions? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Mr. Hughes: I think I'd like to keep it open.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: And have some more comment time.

Chairperson Cardone: Is that a motion, Mr. Hughes?

Mr. Hughes: I could make it a motion.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: And to be clear that would be a motion to keep the Public Hearing open until August…?

Ms. Gennarelli: 27th.

Mr. Donovan: August 27th.

Mr. Hughes: I would like to see about the possibility of mitigating this with the reservoir and the pump or a sprinkler system in the attic and to see what the fire company has to say as well.

Chairperson Cardone: So your suggestion is that we keep it open and wait for a report from the fire…?

Mr. Manley: Even if we close the Public Hearing we still have 62-days to make the decision so the question is is there going to be any more public comment that's going to be…that we're going take in that's going to effect the decision of the Board or are we just going to wait for the comment from the a…?

Chairperson Cardone: I would think it would depend on what the report was from the fire company. 

Mr. Hughes: Or if it will be brought up tonight has another issue that we're not looking at that the public might indicate I would feel more comfortable leaving it open for that purpose. 

Chairperson Cardone: We have a motion. Do we have a second? 

Mr. McKelvey: I think I'll second for the same reason, Ron.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The Public Hearing will be held open until August the 27th. 

Mr. Hughes: Now counsel, whose responsibility to charge the report from the fire administrator?  

Mr. Donovan: I believe Mr. Canfield has volunteered to do that, so I always…?

Mr. Hughes: You'll take care of that part Jerry? And you'll cc everybody in the vote? Thank you.

Ms. Gennarelli: Was that a positive response, Mr. Canfield? I'll just put it in the record. Thank you.

Mr. Canfield: You didn't hear my head rattle but that was affirmative.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: If anyone in the public is here in reference to that application you will not be re-noticed. The notification that it will be a Public Hearing is given to you right now. It will be August the 27th.  

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY






DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.              

 (Time Noted – 7:29 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JULY 23, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:29 PM) 



FRANK KONING



10 SLOANE ROAD, NBGH







(43-5-11.22) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for an accessory structure shall be in a rear or side yard, the maximum allowed square footage for an accessory structure, for storage of more than (4) vehicles and exceeding the maximum height to build a 40' x 26' detached garage (accessory structure). 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Frank Koning.               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, July 14th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday July 15th. The applicant sent out seventeen registered letters, sixteen were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Burns: Good evening my name is Laut Burns first name is spelled L-A-U-T. And tonight I'm representing my brother-in-law Frank Koning. Frank is requesting an area variance for a private detached 3-car garage. Frank's home was built in 1860 so Frank went out and he hired JK Tek and Michael Aiello to design appropriate building to go with his home. I brought a set of plans along if anyone would like to see them. The variance will not produce an undesirable change in the character of the neighborhood or adjacent properties because Frank sits on a four acre lot, he has a 350 foot setback on the property with a south side yard setback of 145 feet, a north setback of 200 and a rear setback of 125 and in the rear there is also a 70-foot drop off. The benefit sought cannot be achieved by any other method because Frank would like to have the antique vehicles that he has at his home where they could be used and enjoyed and rental space is just to costly and outpaces the appreciation of the antique vehicles. The area variance is not a substantial because Frank's lot size as I said before is four acres, the garage is not visible from the street and the design is what you would expect the given area. There are several of similar size and design in the area such as that one on Grand Avenue and two on Sloane Road. The variance will not have an impact on the environment or the physical conditions because it is just a garage. It's nothing unusual. The hardship has not been, hardship has not been created, self-created other than if you look at your 401K programs that you all probably have it sends a chill up your spine. But Frank has a substantial investment that he's trying to protect in his antique automobiles and by having this garage there on his property he can have them under his control. Questions?

Chairperson Cardone: You currently have a garage on the property? 

Mr. Burns: That's true.

Chairperson Cardone: And that is a two-car garage?

Mr. Burns: Yes it is.

Chairperson Cardone: Correct. And this would then be five… 

Mr. Burns: Yes, you're correct.

Chairperson Cardone: …cars counting the new one.

Mr. Burns: Yes, you're right. I'd like to point out also that, you know, times change and if you notice there's many, many new homes being built I guess we call them mc mansions now with three car garages in them and then shortly after that you end up with an adjacent building outdoors for the swimming pool shed and shortly after that an equipment shed. So I don't really feel, in my opinion, that Frank is asking for anything out of the unusual here.

Mr. McKelvey: The only thing is we only allow four-car garages, four cars, garages for four cars in the Town.

Mr. Burns: Yeah, I understand that. That's why he's asking, that's why…

Mr. McKelvey: You are on this building I would say over 600 feet over?  

Chairperson Cardone: That's correct, yes. 

Mr. Koning: There's plenty of room.

Chairperson Cardone: Right, we understand that.

Mr. McKelvey: We understand that too but the Code says 1000 sq. ft. you're asking for 1616. It doesn't matter about the size of the property.

Mr. Burns: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Is there any way that you could reduce the size of the new garage? 

Mr. Burns: Yes there is. It would put a cramp on the style of which Frank is trying to accomplish having his three vehicles there but yes, he could. He could change it to a two-car which would bring it under, it would be four total. It would be correct and that would be fine.

Mr. McKelvey: That's what you would have to do.  

Mr. Koning: (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me; you have to share the microphone it is being recorded. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, pass it back and forth.

Mr. McKelvey: If we grant you five cars then everybody that comes in we'd have to grant five cars.

Mr. Burns: Well there are five cars around Newburgh. I've seen them.

Chairperson Cardone: Not that have been before this Board.

Mr. McKelvey: Not before us.

Mr. Koning: Over on Downing is it? And Grand?  

Mr. Burns: Grand.

Mr. Koning: There's a five-car garage, five in a row that was fairly new construction.

Mr. McKelvey: They didn't come before us.

Mr. Koning: Well its there. It exists. Or you mean they're not supposed to be there?

Chairperson Cardone: That's correct.

Mr. McKelvey: They're not supposed to be above four. 

Mr. Koning: There's five.

Mr. McKelvey: Jerry?

Mr. Canfield: If you could identify the exact address we'll look at it and see what's there.

Mr. Koning: It's right on the corner of Downing and Grand that one that they've been working on for the last seven years that big mansion.

Mr. Hughes: That's the Italian villa he's referring to on the corner.

Mr. Canfield: Oh, yes.

Mr. Hughes: And those garages have been there since 1860.

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, that's a pre-existing, pre-existing non-conforming. They haven't been working on the garages that I'm aware of. I thought they've been working on the house forever.

Mr. Koning: The garages look brand new.

Mr. Canfield: The garages were just constructed, you're saying?

Mr. Koning: They look…I…

Mr. Hughes: Sir, I've been here since 1948 and they've been here since I've been here.

Mr. Canfield: Yeah. They may have been just resurfaced, the outer side or painted or something but they haven't been just constructed.

Mr. Hughes: Well let's get back to your project here. It's not what's up the road or down the road. And I think that maybe you don't understand what the law spells out that we have to rule by and when you say, sir, that its not substantial because he has four acres its not by the acre it is what is prescribed in the code. Now you're asking for 1616 and you're allowed 1000 even if you have 100 acres. I see that it is a truss-designed building…

Mr. Koning: That's correct. Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Which tells me that the roof is independent and that if you wanted to do this there's reason that you couldn't. So somewhere in between getting what you wish for and what we're allowed to do you have to reduce you're percentage so it's not substantial. It's not the size of the lot that makes it substantial or not. So just so you understand what we have to deal with. 

Mr. Koning: I understand.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Thank you.

Mr. Burns: Thank you. I do have one more thing here. A few of our neighbors asked if they could assist us in any way so I would like to enter this petition into the record. 

(Mr. Burns approached)

Mr. Burns: Thank you. I'd also like to point out, you explained the law well to me but I'd like to point out that the…

Mr. Donovan: He does that well.

Mr. Hughes: He's the attorney.

Mr. Burns: Well the process of being rejected at the Building Department and having the option of being heard by the Zoning Board of Appeals at least gives one hope. The word variance means that the law in this case are flexible not fixed and I hope that the flexibility will prevail in this instance. Thank you for your time.

Mr. Koning: Well what measurements can we have?

Mr. Hughes: Well I can't really tell you that but you can see what's been explained and I can even let you read something so maybe you can figure out your next step.

Mr. Koning: So if we have a continuance on this we can come with another set of plans?

Mr. Hughes: Just reduce it a little bit here and there, you know. The more you can do to this, this and this puts you closer to where you belong.

Mr. Koning: O.K.

Mr. Burns: Like you pointed out Ron, that it’s a truss building and yes, we can shrink it down. So would that be O.K. if we just shrink the building down to a two-car? 

Mr. Hughes: Well it isn't so much the number of doors it’s the square foot of the footprint.

Ms. Drake: Well it's both.

Chairperson Cardone: It's both. 

Mr. McKelvey: It's both.

Ms. Drake: It's a four-car garage.

Mr. Hughes: Up to four.

Ms. Drake: Four cars and also…

Mr. Burns: He has two now so…

Ms. Drake: Right. 

Mr. Donovan: If I can? The Board really can't tell you if you do X, Y and Z we'll give you an approval. O.K.? I think what you're hearing tonight is, you know one of the factors, you did your homework and you came through the factors that needed, that need to be proven. One of which is whether or not the variance is substantial and what we're seeing relative to the height and the…it’s a 31% variance and relative to the total area allowed it’s a 61% variance so I think that the Board has indicated to you that if you reduced magnitudes of those variances they may look more favorably upon your application. But they can't tell you a 27.2% we'll approve but 27.3 we won't it and as I said I won't let them talk anymore because they're really not allowed to do that but what they're telling you is the magnitude of what you're asking for is too great so if you reduce it they'll look more favorably upon it.

Mr. Burns: Understood. 

Mr. Koning: I'll just try to do my best and we'll have to get what we need to get the measurements that will be approved. Who do I got to see to get the measurements that I need? It's in the books? 

Mr. Donovan: Well I think you basically…you probably have from Code Compliance because we have a letter from them and you probably have the same letter that indicates what the requirements are and so if you, you know, have two choices. You can withdraw the application and resubmit at a future date or I mean, you're variance application is going to remain one for building height and total accessory area so if you can come back next month and submit or the month after…we can't keep this open forever but if you would submit additional information. Betty, what is it two weeks before the…?

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. 

Mr. Donovan: Two weeks before the next meeting.

Mr. Koning: Yeah, all right, we'll come with another set of plans on all of them.

Mr. McKelvey: If we keep it open you don't have to re-apply.

Mr. Koning: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: And re-mail and all that.

Mr. Koning: Yes, because the days are going already. The crickets are cricketing and it's going to start getting cold before you know it. So all right, we'll come back. If anybody else has anything…?

Chairperson Cardone: First, I'd like to read this into the record and then I'll ask for any public comment. This letter is reference to the Public Hearing to be held on 7/23/09, Town Hall, Newburgh, New York. We the undersigned have no objection to the construction of a detached garage requested by Frank Koning, located at 10 Sloane Road. We hope the Board grants this variance. Thank you. And this is signed by: Laut Burns, 16 Sloane Road, Henry…can't read his writing…

Mr. Burns: Proeve.

Chairperson Cardone: Proeve, 17 Sloane Road, Kimberly Gage, 19 Sloane Road, Jeanne Patsalos, 15 Sloane Road, George Brooks, 9 Sloane Road, Paul Matthew, 13 Sloane Road, Michelle Jannotti, 21 Sloane Road, Bill Rosenthal (Rothenbusch), 5 Sloane Road and B. DuBois, 4 Sloane Road, R.P. Wilbur, 6 Lozier Lane, Donald O'Sullivan, 1 Taffy Lane and Thomas Moran, 7 Sloane Road and Jen Conry, 23 Sloane Road. 

Mr. Koning: And the other ones that were on Lake Drive, I think its that new one over the Oblates, there at the houses there's nobody there to sign anything though. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion?    

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to hold the Public Hearing open to August 27.

Chairperson Cardone: Just a moment, I have someone from the public who would like to comment. Please come up and use the microphone. 

Mr. Cosgrove: Yes, good evening, my name is Jim Cosgrove; I live at 11 Sloane Road across the street from Frank. He and his parents have been excellent neighbors for the last thirty-five years. And the only question I have about the garage he wants to put on is there any change in the usage like from commercial to residential in the application? Or does it remain a residential type of endeavor? 

Chairperson Cardone: He is not applying for a commercial use. He said it was to keep his own personal vehicles in.

Mr. Cosgrove: Thank you very much.

Chairperson Cardone: And that would be a part of the record. 

Mr. Cosgrove: O.K. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other comments or questions from the public? Do I have a motion?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to hold the Public Hearing open to August 28.

Mr. McKelvey: 27th.

Ms. Drake: 27th.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll second. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: And once again if anyone is here that was interested in that application you would not be re-noticed, the notification would be right now and the meeting would be August the 27th. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY






DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.              

 (Time Noted – 7:38 PM)
ZBA MEETING – JULY 23, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:39 PM) 



EDWARD & MARY ELLEN KREDER
364 QUAKER STREET, WALLKILL







(3-1-56) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the combined side yards setbacks to build a 24' x 26' addition on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Edward and Mary Ellen Kreder.               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, July 14th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday July 15th. The applicant sent out fourteen registered letters, fourteen were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Ms. Kreder: Ed and Mary Ellen Kreder from 364 Quaker Street and we're applying for an area variance for the side yard setbacks to build a 24' x 26' addition to our home. We also have a have a classic car that we would like to garage as opposed to keeping it in the driveway so it doesn't get damaged. The new structure will not interfere with any views of any neighbors. For the most part it won't be seen because it will be behind a retaining wall that already has high hedges and a large tree covering that area. 

Chairperson Cardone: And right now I didn't see any garage right now you have no garage?

Ms. Kreder: Correct.   

Chairperson Cardone: I didn't see any there.

Ms. Kreder: No garage.

Mr. Kreder: We have no garage. That's one of the reasons.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board? 

Mr. Manley: I believe this particular requirement of the 80 feet is unique to that particular area. Rock Cut Road, Forest Road, Quaker Street, I believe they all require that combined requirement. Off the roadway, combined 80 feet, is that…?

Mr. Hughes: Right. 

Ms. Kreder: It's the side yard it's not from the road.

Mr. Canfield: I think you may be referring to Jim; there is an additional yard requirement for those roads you had named but that's a front yard. 

Mr. Manley: Frontage?

Mr. Canfield: Right. The application before you is for a combined side yard.

Mr. Manley: Is that also for…is Quaker one the 80 or is that…?

Mr. Canfield: I believe so.

Mr. Manley: Is it?

Mr. Canfield: I can double-check it but I believe it is.

Chairperson Cardone: According to this it is.

Mr. Hughes: It is.

Mr. McKelvey: They're asking for just under 6 feet.

Chairperson Cardone: Right, just a 7%. Do we have any questions from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Ms. Kreder/Mr. Kreder: Thank you.

Mr. Canfield: If I may for the record, Jim, Quaker Street is not included in that additional yard requirement.

Mr. Manley: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:47 PM)

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – JULY 23, 2009             (Resumption for decision: 10:46 PM) 



EDWARD & MARY ELLEN KREDER
364 QUAKER STREET, WALLKILL







(3-1-56) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the combined side yards setbacks to build a 24' x 26' addition on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On the application of Edward and Mary Ellen Kreder, 364 Quaker Street, Wallkill seeking an area variance for the combined side yards setbacks to build a 24' x 26' addition on the residence. And, I have the County report on that, which was Local Determination. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I think we discussed it enough during the meeting. It was a fairly small request 5.9 feet. I make a motion to approve the application. 

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY






DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.              

 (Time Noted – 10:47 PM)
ZBA MEETING – JULY 23, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:48 PM) 



BRIAN & KRISTEN RESNIKOFF

324 QUAKER STREET, WALLKILL







(3-1-51.21) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback for a built single-family residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Brian and Kristen Resnikoff.               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, July 14th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday July 15th. The applicant sent out eleven registered letters, eleven were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Mr. Doce: Good evening, my name is Vince Doce; I have an engineering and surveying business located here in the Town of Newburgh. I'm here this evening to represent Mr. and Mrs. Resnikoff on their application for a variance, a front yard variance on their property located at 324 Quaker Street, tax lot 3-1-51.21 and being in an AR district. Brian and Kristen Resnikoff had a house built for them and our firm did the surveying on the house location for that particular piece of property. When this problem first surfaced I was advised that the problem was created by the excavator for the Resnikoffs and for their builder Bob Tviet had used the wrong stakes to place the building. I have researched it and I do not believe that's true. Now if I could point out to everyone, when we stake out a building to be constructed we place stakes at the corner of the building and we also place offset stakes. The offset stakes are so that the builder, the excavator can keep on checking into these stakes to make sure that he keeps the line of the building generally where it should be. In this case, we would come along the front of the plot along Quaker Street. In effect place an offset stake and the actual building corner, the offset stake and the building in other corners and offset stakes. When this building was staked out the implication made by our office, by a surveyor out of our office, was that the builder and the excavator did not use these two front stakes to the building, to place this building and that he placed erroneously the building along the setback line. The builder Bob Tviet was advised of this, a gentleman who worked with him and who happens to be the father of Mrs. Resnikoff, Bob Yakel was advised of this and the ZBA application implied this. At one point in the ZBA application it says that, the hardship was not caused by the applicant meaning the Resnikoffs but the lack of communication between the builder, the excavator and the surveyor's representative caused this setback variation…the violation. Later on in an addendum to the application it stated how the building got shifted closer to the road line after the initial stakeout remains somewhat of a mystery to the builder, excavator and the surveyor. Again implying that there was something done with these…improperly with these setbacks. It goes on to say better communication and the request of footing or even foundation survey would have prevented this violation. Finally on a…an accompanying letter that was submitted with the application it states, all involved have to share in part of the responsibility for this zoning violation as finger pointing won't help in resolving the matter. All these documents were presented to the Town and Mr. Yakel and Mr. Tviet were made aware of them by a surveyor formerly with our office. All of the above is disingenuous. It is simply not true. This error was caused by our office. We staked out this building incorrectly. I do not believe that Bob Tviet, Bob Yakel, or the Town contributed in any way significantly to this problem. Other than resolving the problem for Mr. and Mrs. Resnikoff I do not want the builder Bob Tviet, Mr. Yakel who works with the builder or the excavator all being new to the Town of Newburgh to get a black eye. They are innocent. I believe the problem was caused by my office. I believe the house was staked out improperly. I will never know for sure what happened but because I can't get the original survey information from the surveyor involved. My son and I then redid this job, retraced the entire job in an effort to see what the problem might be. And although I would like to blame everybody else in the world for this, it's our fault. What happened, I believe, excuse my back Ron…

Mr. Hughes: It's quite all right.

Mr. Doce: Originally Quaker Street had a road line that is laid out in orange on this tax plate from the Town of Newburgh. The tax plate shows the orange is from the previous tax plate and it shows the right of way of Quaker Street as it is shown in orange.

Mr. McKelvey: Vince, we can't see it.

Chairperson Cardone: We can't see it. 

Mr. Doce: O.K. What I was saying this is the tax plate of the Town of Newburgh, the road line for Quaker Street as it existed is shown in orange. We, our office, felt that in front of our property we could make the situation better by computing a new road line which is about 11 ½ feet to the east of the old road line. The purpose of doing that is that if this road is ever widened, if there's plowing done, if there's work done, drainage work by the Town they would be encroaching upon our original road line there so with the Planning Board we agreed to establish a new road line to make it better. That in itself is something that we upon occasion do if we feel that the existing road line is too close to the pavement or too close to the centerline of the existing road. We could only correct that in front of our property. We can't make corrections in front of others property but we did it in front of our property and if you'll notice now the road line of Quaker Street comes down to a point which is at the northerly end of our major subdivision or the subdivision proper, jogs in about 11 ½ feet, goes along the blue line and then jogs out about another 11 ½ feet at the other end and continues in its former location. What you can see here…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, Vince can you take the microphone off the stand? Thank you.

Mr. Doce: Sure. 

Ms. Gennarelli: It comes off. You can hold it. 

Mr. Doce: I could be like a singer? 

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes.

Mr. Doce: What you can see here is that my finger is traversing a dash line, which is the former road line of Quaker Street. We have established a new road line, for the reasons I said before, 11 ½ feet back and you'll see that the road line of Quaker Street now comes down, jogs in in front of our property, goes along the entire length of lots 1, 2, and 3 of our subdivision and 4 and jogs back out and then continues along on the old road line. Our surveyor used, I believe, the old road line. And the reason that I'm fairly well committed to that is the variation is about 11 feet, 11.2 feet or 3 feet and this jog is 11 ½ feet. So simply stated we staked out the property wrong. If the road line was left where it was originally and we never touched it we wouldn't have a problem but it was caused by our shifting the road line to accommodate what we thought was a better situation in the future and our surveyor picking up this front corner point instead of the back point 11 ½ feet back. I don't think its noticeable as far as significance visually because like I said, if it were the old road line we wouldn't have a problem. It is the new road line that we've been established. I don't think it's going to cause any problems in the way of being unsightly or any other difficulties but I do state unequivocally that we caused the problem.

Chairperson Cardone: I have a question. You said that the addendum was erroneous, there's a paragraph in there that I wonder if this is erroneous or not, the builder was advised that some type of mitigation would be necessary to deal with the deficient setback and he agreed. We will be discussing the mitigation with Jerry Canfield and Karen Arent for ideas regarding said mitigation prior to the Public Hearing before this Board. Was that erroneous also?

Mr. Doce: It is erroneous. That was never, I mean I checked with Jerry and he has confirmed that that was never done.

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Canfield?

Mr. Canfield: I just like to bring to everyone's attention also, yes, Vince asked me earlier if I had been contacted and I said no but I see a copy of a letter that was sent to the Building Department to Tilford Stiteler and Joe Mattina requesting a meeting. I can't answer for sure if that meeting did or did not take place. But I see also in this letter, which I have not received a copy of, it says that I would also like to discuss this with Jerry Canfield preparatory to any appearance before the zone of appeals or Zoning Board of Appeals but I have not seen that other than receiving in the packet and that was dated, June 3rd. 

Mr. Doce: To my knowledge it's only in the packet. I can't say for sure because I don't have the information but that's the only place I found it was in the packet.   

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Manley: Well Mr. Doce I have to say that I appreciate your honesty and your candor in your testimony here tonight.

Mr. Doce: As well as my stupidity.

Mr. Manley: Well we all make mistakes. No one is perfect and certainly you know I feel that I can't punish the resident that's building the home. Just a couple of questions though. The individuals are planning to live within the Town or was this built as a spec house?

Mr. Doce: No this is their house. 

Mr. Manley: O.K. And they're right now waiting a C.O….?

Mr. Doce: Yes.

Mr. Manley: …in order to move into the home?

Mr. Doce: Well what the Building Department did after a meeting with the builder, the man who represents the builder agreed that he would let him because of many other problems not related to this that he said that I will let you occupy the house because everything else you've done is perfect, I mean, you had all the inspections, everything is fine, I will let you occupy it but its with the proviso that your C.O. awaits the determination of the ZBA. 

Mr. Manley: O.K. I hope you can appreciate, you know, some of the concerns at least sitting in my spot as a Board Member, quite often we see a lot of these oops and, you know, after a while it gets to the point where…the one we had just before with the height, a lot of times there's a lot of building that's going on in the Town of Newburgh and unfortunately there's a lot of times where stuff is either missed or… and its hard to determine, sitting here, whether or not that was missed on purpose or whether it was missed, you know, with the intention of, you know, trying to get a larger house, different footprint. So, you know, its very difficult to sit here and really try to determine that and certainly with you coming here and explaining that this was an error and you actually coming out and admitting that was something that was overlooked on your part and not putting the blame on the developer or the homeowner, that's appreciated.

Mr. Doce: One thing I would say, there is no benefit as you can see from this parcel of pushing the building back or bringing it up 11 ½ feet, there's no benefit at all that would…it wasn't a bigger building that was being given, just it was nothing. There was no reason to move it other than it was a mistake and it was a mistake based on a recomputed front lines. The highway boundary was recomputed by our office and as you see if you look on the tax maps as you can see it has a jog in it. There is definitely a jog where we reset the road line. See it comes up from down here, there's the highway boundary, there's the highway boundary and it runs across and then jogs back out. So it was truly an honest mistake. The thing that is disconcerting I have to admit to you is the ensuing cover-up where they tried blame the excavator. That bothers me tremendously and I do not want the builder or the excavator being new to this Town, they're going to build other houses here and I don't want them walking into the Building Inspector's office and somebody saying well here comes Bob Tviet who screwed up… I mean it just wouldn't be good for him. It's not too good for me either.

Mr. Manley: Mr. Canfield, do you see any issues with the…where the home is located with regard to the Town, to the Town's point of view? Any concerns or any…?

Mr. Canfield: No, I don’t see any outstanding issues at all.

Mr. Manley: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: I have the report from the Orange County Department of Planning and they have recommended - Local Determination. Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Any other questions or comments from the Board? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Doce: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 8:07 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JULY 23, 2009             (Resumption for decision: 10:47 PM) 



BRIAN & KRISTEN RESNIKOFF

324 QUAKER STREET, WALLKILL







(3-1-51.21) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback for a built single-family residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Brian and Kristin Resnikoff, 324 Quaker Street, Wallkill seeking an area variance for the front yard setback for a built single-family residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: I think it was a good presentation and he took the blame.

Mr. Manley: I would say based on the information that the applicant submitted I would make a motion that we approve the setback.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: John is the second? 

Ms. Drake: Yes.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you. Roll call. 

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.
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17K NEWBURGH, LLC. /Aka

STATE ROUTE 17K, NBGH


     EXETER BUILDING CORP.
(89-1-1.22 formerly 89-1-1.1, 1.2, 3.32) R-1 ZONE 

Applicant is seeking interpretations of the following provisions of law: 104-2 (A) (8), 157-10 (B), 161-20, 161-22, 163-9, 179-32 (I), 185-50 (D), 185-54 (A) (1) and 185-7 (F), 185-57(L). Town Law 267-a (4). New York State Common Law. This application further seeks a determination that the applicant has acquired vested rights and is entitled to complete his project under the pre-March 6, 2006 zoning. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant 17K Newburgh, LLC. Aka Exeter Building Corp.                

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, July 14th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday July 15th. The applicant sent out ninety-six registered letters, eighty-four were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Mr. Golden: Good evening, I think that it's going to take a little while for the presentation. I don't know whether you want me to have the full presentation first and then have the public comment thereafter or just have a brief introduction by me and then have the public comment, whatever the Board would like. 

Chairperson Cardone: I'd like to have the presentation so that when the public does comment they will know what you're requesting.

Mr. Golden: That's fine. First I would like to make it clear as to what we're asking for…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, could you just introduce yourself…?

Mr. Golden: I apologize.

Ms. Gennarelli: …for the record. Thank you.

Mr. Golden: My name is Richard Golden, I'm an attorney with the law firm of Burke, Miele & Golden and I represent the applicant here Mr. Phil (Wilbur) Fried who was here earlier. Unfortunately because of the lateness and getting dark, his eyesight is getting poorer and he had to drive all the way down to New York City so he had to leave earlier so he apologizes for leaving before the application was able to come on before the Board?

Chairperson Cardone: Excuse me. Could you take your conversation out into the hallway? It's difficult enough to hear but if there is other conversations going everyone won't be able to hear. Thank you. Go ahead.

Mr. Golden: Thank you. We're here because of a letter from the Building Inspector, April 14, 2009 letter and as a result of that we need relief from this Zoning Board of Appeals on two issues. One of which is a request for an interpretation of various provisions of the Town Code dealing with bonds for public improvements. The second issue deals with common law vesting. That is that we are asking this Board to make a determination that Mr. Fried has the right to proceed with his project under the pre-March, 2006 zoning because he is entitled to it under common law vesting and I will explain more in detail as to what exactly that is. But first I want to talk about how we got here specifically. You have the booklet; I'm not going to go over everything that's in there. There's a detailed chronology and I'm not going to go over all of the events in the chronology but I do want to talk about a few of those items. The project itself is thirty-four residential town homes on twenty-nine acres. Its four units per town home so it’s a hundred and thirty-six units on these twenty-nine acres. As it was proceeding, starting in 2002 through the Planning Board process and as the result of a request by the Planning Board's consultants and the Planning Board there was a lot line change requested which my client exceeded to and went through the process of a lot line revision which is under the Town Law a subdivision. There was a separate plat that was generated with respect to that lot line subdivision signed by the Planning Board Chairman and filed with the County Clerk. That's important for vesting purposes, which is why I bring it up. That was in January of 2006. In March of 2006 the Town had a rezone of Mr. Fried's property as well as a lot of other properties in that portion of the Town. Now although that came up in March 2006 it had been discussed with the Town Board for many years prior to that. However, Mr. Fried was not concerned with that because up until very near the end it did not involve the area as a proposed for his site… Yes?

Mr. Manley: If we have a question in between your comments is it possible to interject? Only in that, by the time you finish the question may have already been lost.

Mr. Golden: I'm very happy to do that. Whatever the Board wants I'm happy to follow your requests.

Mr. Manley: Because I just wanted interject, you had indicated that there was a change in the zoning. Correct? Which is what constituted part of your problem in '06, is that correct?

Mr. Golden: Correct.

Mr. Manley: Now prior to that and we're going back prior to 2006, your statement in here indicated the applicant was aware that, you know, he was going through the Planning Board. Correct? The process of trying to get his project approved, is that correct? 

Mr. Golden: Yes.

Mr. Manley: Prior to that, prior to 2006 was the applicant aware or was he ever put on notice by the Town that they were undergoing a Master Plan change or a change in zoning and that that potentially could impact his property? 

Mr. Golden: Yes.

Mr. Manley: O.K.  

Mr. Golden: There was for years there was discussions with various committees and Town committees and sub-committees and Public Hearings all with respect to the rezone. None of that affected his project. Then after the draft environmental impact statement after the Public Hearing was open and closed on that draft environmental impact statement and only during the final environmental impact statement was it ever discussed that now the rezone was also going to include his property. At that point in time…

Mr. Manley: Just his property?

Mr. Golden: No. 

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Golden: His property and some others that area of the Town including his property.   

Mr. Manley: O.K. I just needed to know whether or not it was just that small parcel or whether it was a larger area?

Mr. Golden: It was a larger area that the prior zoning that was discussed now encompassed an additional area including but not limited to Mr. Fried's property.

Mr. Manley: O.K. and when that happened was there any reason given why that was changed or why that was included? 

Mr. Golden: Well it appears from the record that the Town was being responsive to objections placed by residents in that area to my clients' project and another project the Drury Lane subdivision. But be that as it may that's not really relevant to…to my arguments here and I'm not trying to say that there was any bad motives involved with that.

Mr. Manley: O.K. 

Mr. Golden: But you asked a question as to why.

Mr. Manley: I'm just trying to establish if the applicant, your client, knew at any point along the way that there this process going on of a Master Plan or a change of rezoning or if there was any inkling while he was going through his process and spending money that, you know, that there was a process of potential rezoning going on. That's what I was trying to determine.  

Mr.. Golden:  I didn't finish my whole answer to you. The first answer is that during that long period of time it wasn't involved in it and then at the final environmental impact stage it was brought up for the first time and to such an extent that the Town needed to go then and do a supplemental environmental impact statement to address this new area that was added because it wasn't studied at all in the earlier studies under the draft environmental impact statement.

Mr. Hughes: What date did you become aware that the FEIS triggered the additional rezoning issues you're speaking about? 

Mr. Golden: I think right about the time of the FEIS. I don't have that date before me but I was also going to say that in addition to that general public, you know, sort of public notice that his property was now going to be involved. He also received some correspondence, I believe, but certainly in one of the Planning Board conditions it indicated that in fact this was a possibility and that he was proceeding at his own risk.

Mr. Manley: O.K. 

Mr. Golden: Right and I readily admit that.  From my point of view, that doesn't really make any difference because its not a new law until the new law passes.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. Golden: I'm not saying that we went, we went from that point to the final point under some misapprehension that our zoning was never going to be changed. That's not correct. We tried to get our approvals prior to the zoning changing. We were put on notice however that argument actually was made by the Town before the courts that in fact our lawsuit should be thrown out because in fact we had been notified of this and in fact, the courts rejected that argument and in fact granted us statutory vesting. So I don't think its well placed that simply because we were on notice that that somehow affects this application at all, before this Zoning Board.

Mr. Hughes: Have you been the attorney throughout this process for the applicant?

Mr. Golden: Depending upon what you mean by this process. If you're talking about before the Zoning Board, yes. If you're talking about after he was notified that he was going to be rezoned, I've been an attorney to him since that time. I was not an attorney to him prior to that time.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I just wanted to refresh my memory and so that everyone knows, I seem to recall going to Council meetings, Planning Board meetings and Zoning Board meetings and I used to do them all to stay with stuff so that there couldn't be the he said, you said, I said stuff, that Mr. Fried attended all of those hearings and all of those meetings with other attorneys and I didn't recall you being there and I just wanted to make sure and with that being said I'm sure that your research and development is comprehensive. I just wanted you to know that Mr. Fried was fully well aware of stuff because of what was told to him at meetings other than zoning.

Mr. Golden: I don't know what you mean by other than zoning.

Mr. Hughes: That he was proceeding at risk.

Mr. Golden: Yes. He was told that but that that didn't enter into the process until fairly late. That was not years prior to that time…

Mr. Hughes: I'm aware of that.

Mr. Golden: O.K. 

Mr. Hughes: I just wanted to make it clear to you.

Mr. Donovan: I don't mean to short circuit the conversation and obviously this all is important but I think there's a real…the large issue that looms out there kind of a threshold issue is not statutory vesting or what Mr. Fried may or may not have known because the court said that, in fact, statutory vesting occurred that statutory vesting has lapsed. That's why this application is here tonight, that statutory vesting was good for three years, it lapsed this spring so the issue, the threshold issue as I see it in any event and I don't want to short-circuit Mr. Golden's presentation or anyone's questions, is whether or not he's acquired what's known as common law vesting. And common law vesting is going to be looking at his…his…what the law takes, substantial construction, substantial expenditures and not only that the courts will also say that the landowner must establish the expenditures were so substantial that the municipal action results in a serious loss rendering the improvements…improvements essentially valueless. So I think that’s the threshold issue that we need to determine because if we determine that in fact, vested rights were not acquired then all the other interpretations we don't need to, in my view, we don't need to reach. We only need to reach those issues if in fact we determine there was vested rights. So I mean, I think, the issue of the…what's in the presentation about the clearing and grading permit and what was done and what was expended and that issue is critical to the Board. And again I don't mean to short-circuit the history of it but a lot of people have lived that history so I just want to make sure that we keep our eye on the ball and what the issue is before the Board.

Mr. Golden: I agree. Again this was meant to be brief but this introduction with respect to where we are now so you know, he has his project, there was a lot line subdivision application that was approved and filed and then there was the rezone in March of 2006. Mr. Fried then instituted a lawsuit because he felt that his rights were being taken away including his statutory vesting rights. So he sued the Town and the Town defended it vigorously all the way up to the highest court in New York and the end result was a court decision that said that Mr. Fried indeed because of the history of what happened did in fact have statutory vesting rights and therefore he was allowed to proceed with his project with a statutory three years from when that subdivision plat was filed in January of 2006. Part of Mr. Fried's problem was that a lot of that time had been used up in the litigation so he actually had ten months to try to complete his project under the statutory vesting period. So the court came out in March of 2008 and granted Mr. Fried statutory vested rights under Town Law Section 265-A. That statutory vesting, that is the right to continue with his project under the pre-March 2006 zoning, lasted until January of 2009. Now during this time frame he also proceeded and achieved a final site-plan approval from the Planning Board. That approval was granted in December of 2007 and allowed him again to move forward with his project. And in trying to be diligent in moving forward he then asked for a Building Permit to take down two Town abandoned water towers. Now these two towers are not on Mr. Fried's property. The reason that he was taking them down is because when Mr. Fried applied to the Town for extensions of the water and sewer districts they made it a condition. They said we'll go ahead and grant water and sewer district extensions but among other things you have to take down our two towers for free. So Mr. Fried had to do that. So that was part of what he had to do and the planning site plan conditioned the site plan on doing everything that the water and sewer district extensions required as far as conditions. So he was obligated by this to take down those two water towers for free for the Town. He obtained a Building Permit and in fact did that work. He took down the two towers and a rather massive foundation. He also built, constructed a berming connection with it. The pictures for taking down the two towers you have several of those in the packet that you have with the photographs that are included including the size of the foundation that was involved. Then Mr. Fried went and went again before the Planning Board to try to get a Clearing and Grading Permit. But before you can get a Clearing and Grading Permit from the Building Inspector you have to go before the Planning Board. And the Planning Board has to approve the fact that you should get a Clearing and Grading Permit and then you can go to the Building Inspector to actually get the Permit. Mr. Fried did that. It was a rather extensive application to the Planning Board and the Planning Board went ahead and passed a resolution in favor of that on July 17th of 2008 and approved the Clearing and Grading Permit in accordance with the site plan that he had which was the site plan under the old zoning. Mr. Fried then got the Clearing and Grading Permit from the Building Inspector in August of 2008. Now I will talk about in a little bit all the work that Mr. Fried did in connection with the Building Permit for the towers and the Clearing and Grading Permit just to tie up how we got to the present time. Mr. Fried worked through January, 2009 and then he wanted to have when his statutory vesting was still in place, he then wanted to change some aspects of his site plan which is not unusual for someone to come back before a Planning Board and ask for an amendment to the site plan saying I want to change some certain things and one of the things he wanted to change was to get rid of the public bonding requirements that I'll talk about in a minute but also change some other aspects of the plan to build it a little differently. He went back to the Planning Board for an amended site plan in March of 2009 and then in April of 2009, April 14th to be certain, he received a letter from the Building Inspector saying to him and to the Planning Board that he cannot go forward with an amended site plan that his statutory vesting was up and therefore he can't be heard. And indeed, on April 16th two days later when we appeared before the Planning Board, the Planning Board said there is really no sense in going forward with this application because even if we listen to it all at the end of the day we're going to rely upon this letter that says that you don't have a right to go forward under the old zoning and so we would not grant you your amended site plan. Therefore it forced us to go ahead and appeal the Building Inspector's April 14th decision to this Board. So that's where and how we got here today. Now with respect to the interpretation issue, one of the things that we're asking for in the amended site plan application that was denied by the Building Inspector was to be relieved of your code provisions saying that he has to provide certain bonding and fees. And Mr. Fried has no problem paying all the bonding and fees that he's required but what those, the ones that we have identified and for the record those are sections 104-2 (A) (8), 157-10 (B) and if you want to look at my initial letter its actually on page 16 of the letter, last page of the letter right above the conclusion. The second was 157-10 (B), 161-20, 161-22, 163-9, 179-32 (I), 185-50 (D) and 185-57 (L). Now all of these provisions indicate that an applicant must put up bonding and fees whenever they are going to construct public improvements and that's the specific phrase that's used throughout those sections, public improvements. Mr. Fried is not constructing any public improvements. He is not creating any roads that’s going to be offered for dedication to the Town. They are going to be private roads. He's not building any sewer or water lines that are going to be offered for dedication to the Town. He is not constructing any drainage districts or areas that will be dedicated to the Town. Everything is going to be private and therefore a very simple reading of the code is that he ought not to be required to have bonding and fees for public improvements when in fact he is not building any public improvements. So our request for an interpretation is simply this that when the code requires bonding and fees for public improvements that it means public improvements. It doesn't mean any improvements. If it meant any improvements it would just say all improvements or improvements. But it's very specific and says public improvements. That word public modifies improvements and you can't ignore it, you know, I believe for this issue and for all issues that I'm going to be talking about tonight because I'm going to be talking about some law tonight. Please don't misinterpret what I've said. I'm not trying to advise this Board as to how you should rule with respect to legal advice and I'm not certainly advising you on what the law is.

Mr. Donovan: No, Ron does that.

Mr. Golden: I'm advising you as to what I believe the law is. You should always rely upon your counsel obviously to go ahead and advise you as to what the law is. The way we look at this and in conjunction with how the courts have always dealt both with local codes as well as state statutes is that you cannot read a code or a statute in such a way that it renders a word or a phrase meaningless because that's bound to be contrary to whoever enacted this who obviously meant something if they put it in there. So if an interpretation ends up that you are basically writing out of the code a word or a phrase as meaningless then the rules of statutory construction are very clear in saying that you can't do that. It had to have some meaning otherwise it would not have been in there and I think this meaning is very easy. The meaning is that it was public improvements as opposed to private improvements. Mr. Fried's improvements that he has are going to be private improvements and not public improvements. I don't need to belabor it any more. Those are the sections that I've stated are also set forth in my application to you and my request is simply that public improvements does include any private improvements such as the kind that Mr. Fried is proposing in his project.

Ms. Drake: May I ask a question?

Mr. Golden: Sure.

Ms. Drake: Will there be a transportation corporation for the water and sewer that will be on the private property or not part of the public system?

Mr. Golden: Its not anticipated at this time. These are simply basically laterals that are coming on to the…into the extended water and sewer districts that the Town granted him so that he's now in the water and in the sewer district and so he's simply connecting up his project to that water and sewer district. But if the Town would require a transportation corporation we would go ahead and form a transportation corporation. We have no problem with that if that's what the Town would like to do. But the issue here for this Board is whether or not that phrase public improvements means that something is public such as public roads, public drainage facilities, things that are offered and accepted by municipality by a developer. That's not happening in this case. 

Mr. Manley: So in the event that there's a water break inside of this private property and they're connected to the Town public water supply whose water main break is it? Is it the Town of Newburgh's or is it the private property?

Mr. Golden: If its on the property that the development is being built on its not the Town's responsibility at all. 

Mr. Manley: O.K. so let's just fast forward to another example. I would assume that there would probably be fire hydrants there for fire protection, correct?

Mr. Golden: Yes, there's going to be…all requirements and I can't tell you how many but yes that has all been (Inaudible)

Mr. Manley: But there will be some form of fire hydrants at that…

Mr. Golden: Yes.

Mr. Manley: …on the private property?

Mr. Golden: Correct.

Mr. Manley: So if someone were to open up those fire hydrants, an unknown person, and the water is just spewing out, that's private water that's actually spewing out onto the streets? Or is that public water? 

Mr. Golden: It is water being utilized by a private individual. No different than on your home if in fact there was a large break in the lateral from the main to your house that broke and was spewing that water all over the place. That's not the Town's responsibility to fix even though the water starts out as public and then when it passes into the lateral is your private water. 

Mr. Manley: But would that be a concern of the public water supply system that there was an open hydrant that is just spewing water or would that be…or would the Town have no control over that? That's, I guess, just a question for you…I'm just asking a question. I'm wondering if you could provide…

Mr. Golden: They would be no more or no less concerned if you were to open up your lateral and start allowing water to flow all over the place.

Mr. Manley: But that water is metered.

Mr. Golden: So would this water be metered. 

Mr. Manley: Not unless there's a meter at the…at the main out in the road which I… 

Mr. Golden: That's correct.

Mr. Manley: …I doubt that would be the case cause I don't know of any…I don't know of any developments in the Town of Newburgh that have meters prior to the…prior to the development. For example, let's just use a development like Meadow Winds. They have a main…they have a main that goes into Meadow Winds, there's no meter before it goes into Meadow Winds that says how many gallons they use. The meters are at the houses. 

Mr. Golden: It certainly can be accomplished that way but if its set up that way and there is a break in someone's lateral either before or after the meter its not the responsibility of the Town nor would it be under these circumstances.                 

Mr. Manley: But what I'm saying is that if a fire hydrant was left open would it be a concern of the Town and would the Town have the authority to…I mean what you're saying is its no big deal because…

Mr. Golden: No, I…I never said it was no big deal. What I said was that the Town's concern would be no more or no less than a break on your private property.  

Mr. Manley: I would think that an open hydrant would be more of a concern. You'd have losses of…of…and I'll give you an example, the old Lloyd's building which is no longer there had an actual…a contractor broke one of the mains that went into the Lloyd's building and I think Mr. Canfield probably even remembers that. It happened on a weekend. Well it completely drained the Town's water system where there were businesses that were out of water in the Town. Now that's private property but certainly the consolidated water district which is a public entity of the Town of Newburgh was extremely concerned by this…this water break…

Mr. Golden: As they should be.

Mr. Manley: …by the private contractor and in fact, the Town had to send somebody in on private property to shut the water off. So that would have been a public concern. So I guess my question is, its private property but isn't it not the concern of the public entity and isn't it a public entity that actually has to regulate that commodity?

Mr. Golden: Yes it’s a public entity that has to regulate that commodity. Yes they would be concerned as they would be in your example. Yes they have means at their disposal to go in and rectify something like that but it's no different than the…its no different in kind than any lateral on anyone's property, which can be substantial. I represent the Village of Tuxedo Park, they now have a situation in which there's a homeowner that has…has developed a leak, a subterranean leak, didn't know about it for a while until an enormous bill came in for five thousand dollars for the period and it was three-hundred thousand gallons were lost, tremendous amount. Is the Village concerned? Absolutely. Are they trying to rectify with the homeowner, that situation, because obviously it affects others in that Village water system? Absolutely. But whether or not because of that you would require for your own personal lateral or for that person's personal lateral or any other development that is built on private land that you have to that…yours is a public improvement and therefore you have to bond you're lateral to your house. You didn't have to bond your lateral to your house and what the interpretation that's being given is that basically that's what Mr. Fried has to do.

Mr. Manley: Well then the purpose of the bond is to what? Just to…the purpose of the bonding is for what purpose? 

Mr. Golden: The purpose of the bonding and I'll defer to your own counsel if he wants to advise you. But the purpose of the bonding is…

Mr. Manley: I just wanted to hear your…

Mr. Golden: Sure, absolutely, the purpose of the bonding is to make sure that its completed and usually another component of that is a part of the bond to make sure that something doesn't fail within a period of time, usually a year after the public improvement is constructed. So if a road is constructed, before its constructed many times if its going to be postponed there will be a bond so that the public can go in and complete the road if necessary, a completion bond. And then also if for some reason even though it was well inspected it fails within the next year there's usually money that's put aside in a bond to go ahead and repair that within the first year. After that it’s the public's responsibility but its security that's what that bond is for security for making sure that those improvements are done because they're utilized and accepted by the public.

Mr. Manley: So once this private property has been developed and the water system is in which is basically you're using the Town's water system, the Town of Newburgh is sending your private property water and in the event there is a catastrophic failure of lets say the pipes that are releasing water that the Town of Newburgh is producing the Town would at that point would probably have to take some sort of action…I'm only thinking, using some sort of bond money to repair that so that we don't have a catastrophic failure of the entire system. Yes?

Mr. Golden: No. 

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Golden: It would not be there for any…even if it was proper to have one, you don't have public bonding forever.

Mr. Manley: Well no, but within the period of time that the…lets say 6 months, 8 months, they would release that money over time I would imagine…not, they're not going to release it all at once. 

Mr. Golden: And my argument is is that I'm not saying that it's inappropriate to want to have bonding on private improvements. In fact they could, in my opinion, if the Town Code stated it, we want it on all improvements including your lateral to your house that you would have to put a bond up. You don't. Nobody does but on Mr. Fried's project they said yours is private too but we think its public so therefore we are going to require it on yours. That's unfair, its not in accordance with the code language calling for public improvements being bonded not all improvements being bonded and your lateral is just analogous to the Exeter project that is that its water starting from the public and flowing to your house and it goes over your private property and through your private lateral pipe into your house. If there's a leak there, it's your responsibility. If in fact when you're building it, if all of a sudden you can't complete lateral, that's your responsibility. The Town didn't get any money from you to complete that work as security. And that's all that Mr. Fried is asking for here to be treated alike. It's not a public improvement. If he was going ahead and offering his roads to dedication to the public they were going to be public roads, offering the water line and the sewer lines as public then in fact, yes, he would be clearly be required to post all of that bond because they are public improvements. The public is protecting itself for those improvements for which it will ultimately use.  

Ms. Eaton: Is it intended that Madison Green will always remain private?

Mr. Golden: Yes. There will be a homeowner's association to take care of all the expenses on this just like any other private development and in fact the homeowner's requirement and the approval of a homeowner's agreement, etc. were all conditions of the Planning Board's site plan approval.  

Ms. Drake: So therefore the homeowner's association is more or less in lieu of a transportation corporation that is in fact required for all sewer mains by the State DEC?

Mr. Golden: Well transportation corporations come in to play certain instances. In this case, you're absolutely right that a homeowner's association provides the same basic provisos that that transportation corporation does but if the Town wanted a transportation corporation we would go ahead and have a transportation corporation between the homeowner's association and the Town would sign off on it.

Mr. Hughes: How familiar are you with all of the in and out of the water and sewer from the road that were created by the demolition of the tanks and the loop system that was recommended by the engineers in order to participate properly and to assure that the neighborhoods on both sides of the project wouldn't be affected? There were certain codicils that were set aside in agreement with both the Town and the developer. Are you versed enough to speak about those?

Mr. Golden: It depends upon the level of detail. I know that as a requirement of the extension water and sewer districts there was quite a number of requirements that the Town required of the developer to make various improvements that would benefit not his project but other residents in the area. 

Mr. Hughes: That's what I'm talking about. That's good for openers so then I'll start categorically to get to what I want to know about. Are you considered an outside user? And when I say you, the applicant that you represent, are you an outside user or are you part of the sewer district?

Mr. Golden: Part of the sewer district.

Mr. Hughes: So if you're part of the sewer district doesn't that make you public? 

Mr. Golden: No.

Mr. Hughes: Enlighten me.

Mr. Golden: Well I don't know where you live but if you're part of…in the sewer district…

Mr. Hughes: You don't want to get into that.

Mr. Golden: All right. Let me pick hypothetical Mr. Smith who owns a one-acre lot and is in the sewer district. They're in the sewer district and it's no different.

Mr. Hughes: And that's public and so for you to tell me…

Mr. Golden: No, no, wait a second…it depends upon what you mean by what is public?

Mr. Hughes: Your system, your water and your sewer system. 

Mr. Golden: The…the systems is public from the main to the treatment.

Mr. Hughes: Even though it's added in improvement with the neighbors?

Mr. Golden: Correct. All that is going to be private. 

Mr. Hughes: Well…

Mr. Golden: And the responsibility is for a…

Mr. Hughes: Counsel?

Mr. Donovan: Well, at the risk of…I don't want to direct the conversation but in my own humble…well I should say this…

Mr. Hughes: I can say it. I don’t have a sheepskin. 

Mr. Donovan: I should say I kind of feel like I'm at home. 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Donovan: Because my wife and kids don't listen to me and you guys don’t either because…

Mr. Hughes: Doesn't that tell you something?

Mr. Donovan: Yes. The threshold…as I see it the threshold issue whether or not there is common vested rights. If there's not common law vested rights all the talk about bonding, water, sewer we don't even get to.

Mr. Hughes: It’s a mute point. 

Mr. Donovan: So I'd rather, I mean the public gets to ask what they are here to ask about obviously… 

Mr. Golden: Well if I could interject for a second?

Mr. Donovan: No, not right now, I really kind of like the Board to focus on the issue of common law vested rights because that gets to the issue of whether or not there's been substantial improvements and expenditures. So kind of the questions in my mind is, are there any roads there? Are there curbs in? In terms of water and sewer, are water and sewer lines in? Already buildings built? Those are the types of things that generally would give you common law vesting especially when they talk about; the courts talk about a serious loss rendering the improvements essentially valueless. What improvements are there that would be valueless? How much money has been spent on the project versus how much money will it cost to build out the project? Those are the issues that are critical to a determination as to whether or not there is common law vesting. And I don't…the other issues I'm not saying are not important but I don't think they're as important as that main issue.

Mr. Hughes: It's the tip...

Ms. Eaton: Are there utilities in there now? Catch basins, drainage pipes, water, sewer, roadways? 

Mr. Golden: We have none of those except for there is a drainage pipe that was installed and I'll go into the details of that. I have pictures of those. 

Ms. Eaton:  So you haven't incurred expenses for these other…?

Mr. Hughes: I agree with our attorney's advice…

Mr. Golden: That's correct. 

Mr. Hughes: …about staying at the main subject matter here and…

Ms. Eaton: That's why I was asking that, Ron. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: It just seems that we've got to get over that first hurdle before we can go into the rest of any of this. 

Mr. Manley: What's the total build out cost of the entire project? Soup to nuts, what are you looking at as far as cost?  

Mr. Golden: I don't know. I don't have that figure. If I had it I'd give it to you. I don't have it. I don't think its relevant as to what a build out figure is. There is no case that has talked about common law vesting that has ever analyzed the build out cost of any project. 

Mr. Donovan: How do we know if the improvements are substantial though?


Mr. Golden: I will be explaining that. 

Mr. Manley: Can you estimate or give us a close number as to how much has been spent up to this point?

Mr. Golden: Yes. I'm going to be going over that in detail in a minute but if you want to know the…its set forth in the papers that…that were given to you…

Mr. Donovan: I'm looking at page 15 it talks about…

Mr. Golden: There's three hundred…more than three hundred thousand dollars in project approvals that were spent and more than one hundred and fifty thousand dollars in site improvements under the Clearing and Grading Permit and the Building Permit for the removal of the towers.

Mr. Donovan: That three hundred thousand dollars, what is that for? Because it talks about in reliance upon the then zone R-3. Are those soft costs or construction costs? 

Mr. Golden: Those are not construction costs. Those are soft costs but considered by courts to be appropriate. We did include in those costs appearances before Boards and other things but we have included in there the engineering of all of the plans and the courts have allowed costs dealing with engineering work for the project to be included as a cost of the project. And I refer you among other cases to the Orangetown versus Magee case.   

Mr. Manley: It did indicate here in the letter that you provided that the value of the Madison Green project is as designed and approved under the R-3 zoning is approximately thirteen million, six hundred thousand.

Mr. Golden: Yes.

Mr. Manley: If it had to be built under the R-1 zoning, which is, I understand, the current zoning presently correct? It would be a approximate reduced cost of two point three four million, two million, three hundred and forty thousand. 

Mr. Golden: Yes, that's in my letter to you. That's right. Those are the relative values of the prior zoning that we believe he is entitled to versus the zoning the Building Inspector says that should apply for that project, which is twenty-three homes.


Mr. Manley: Where did you obtain that number for the two million, three hundred and forty thousand?

Mr. Golden: From my client.

Mr. Manley: And do you know where he obtained that number from?

Mr. Golden: I assume he put pencil to paper and figured out. That's what developers do; they try to figure out the value of a particular project so they know whether or not it makes sense to go forward. But I don't know the calculations. I have never seen the calculations.

Mr. Maher: Jim, if I may? Obviously based on the one hundred and thirty six versus twenty-three they're allowing basically one hundred thousand dollars per unit built out costs including all the infrastructure and the residence itself. Based on the numbers he has here about one hundred thousand per unit.   

Mr. Golden: And that's the math, I don't know whether or not that's how he calculated that number or whether he actually…

Mr. Maher: No I mean it's simple math, one hundred and thirty six versus twenty-three. 

Mr. Golden: The math works that way. I'm just saying I don't know if that's how he arrived at that figure was by that same math analysis. The only thing that I was going to add, Mr. Donovan, was that the reason that I think that the public improvement issue regardless of the vested issue is still a live and valid issue is because if he goes forward with his twenty-three lots and decides to do the same kind of private improvement on that property, not have twenty-three individual lots that he sell then we're still back to the same issue that the Planning Board and the Building Inspector would require under the present reading…their reading of the code it would require Mr. Fried to put up public bonding monies for private improvements. But other than that I've exhausted that issue. I think that I've made my case to you. It's obviously up to you in your deliberations and advice of counsel as to what to do with respect to that interpretation.

Chairperson Cardone: I'd like to…if I could there…I think that there are many people who have been waiting very patiently and do we have any members of the public that would like to address this particular application? If so, state your name and address. Please use the microphone. Just give your name and address. 

Ms. Gennarelli: You can tilt that down toward you or take it off.

Ms. Bistor: My name is Beverly Bistor, 6 Flamingo Drive, Newburgh and we can ask this applicant about anything at this point?

Chairperson Cardone: Anything that pertains to the interpretation.

Ms. Bistor: Or just the interpretation of this law?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Ms. Bistor: And bring up another point at a future time?

Chairperson Cardone: Say what you have to say and we will…

Ms. Bistor: What I wanted to know was, I'm not well-versed in zoning laws or procedures and I realize that there were letters sent out. Now these…letters, I believe you said there was ninety-five letters sent out to people about this project and this meeting tonight? Am I correct?

Mr. Golden: I didn't say that.

Ms. Gennarelli: I said that.

Chairperson Cardone: The secretary said that.

Ms. Bistor: You said that right. Now what, who received these letters? They were sent out. Who received them? 

Mr. Donovan: People who live in, I forget what the distance is.

Ms. Gennarelli: Three hundred feet.

Mr. Hughes: Three hundred feet.

Mr. Donovan: Three hundred feet from the boundary of the property. 

Ms. Bistor: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: It’s a list generated by the Town Assessor and I believe the property is a…

Ms. Bistor: They have to actually live there? Am I correct? Or is it the impact of… 

Chairperson Cardone: The owner of the property. Whoever is the owner of the property.

Mr. Donovan: With the assessor it is the owner.

Ms. Bistor: Did you notify the school board?

Mr. Hughes: Probably. 

Mr. Golden: We notified whoever the Town told us to notify. We got the list from the Town…


Ms. Gennarelli: The Assessor's Office.

Mr. Golden: The Assessor's Office, thank you and the wording of the notice was also from the Town so…

Ms. Bistor: I was just wondering if you notified the school board. You are directly across the street from the school. If I were a parent of a child in that school and as a taxpayer I would feel that I had a right to state anything that I would like to at this meeting. Now, this project in your construction alone, I presume you would work Monday through Friday during the day when our children are in a school directly across the road. The very idea of trucks backing up and going beep, beep, beep every time they are put into reverse that our children are going to listen to and they are trying to learn this is not right. Would you like to work weekends and school holidays? Because that's the only way it will not affect our children. Now adults, homeowners are not affected as much as our children. The adults go to work every day. They're not there while your construction is going on but even a retired person they can go shopping, they can go out for the day, they're not there all the while you are working but our children are and that is what I want to put before this Board because I feel that you did not notify enough people about this Public Hearing.

Chairperson Cardone: I do have the list here and the Central School District, 944 State Route 17K, Montgomery was notified.

Ms. Bistor: They were notified? Do you have a response?

Mr. Golden: Someone signed for it but I don't think that the School District actually submitted a written comment, if that's what you're asking.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. We did not. If we had a written comment we would read it into the record. 

Ms. Bistor: I see. I don't believe that there's any member of the School Board here tonight unfortunately but that was my comment. Thank you very much for your time.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Do we have anyone else who would like to make a comment? Yes?

Mr. Corbin: Good evening, Bill Corbin, 3 Fleetwood Drive I was not notified. Obviously I'm outside of the radius of which was drawn.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Corbin: A couple of items, first of all relative to the vested rights. I mean when I look at that site I don't see substantial improvements and I thought that it was a combinational effect of investment and site improvements. One without the other did not, in fact, confer common law vested rights. And I think Putnam/Armonk in 1976, actually the courts opinion stated that very clearly. In terms of the investments and the public bonding if I could comment on that? The water, when you mention its not a public improvement, my question really comes down to system capacity because we already suffer from water pressure issues throughout that area and while maybe today its not viewed as public improvements required, I question whether or not in fact the…the hydraulic capacity of that system throughout that area is, in fact, sufficient enough to carry that load as well as the planned load that we're talking about up the road. Now certainly that's not your issue to…to deal with the combinational effect but we, who have to live throughout that area and already suffer from reduced pressure subset, I think there are fire hydrants which are out of service because they can't carry sufficient pressure even with the Town having extended the Municipal water system to take over the duty that we had with our community water system that's since been decommissioned. I think that's something that needs to be considered. So to the extent that today's plan doesn't call for those types of improvements to be funded by the…the developer it's certainly that's something I think we need to look at in terms of the bigger issue. Roadways, are the roadways going to be improved? If you do a takeoff and let's say the system stays as is, let me go back to the water issue, the system stays as is, will there be a shutoff afforded at that point of the lateral takeoff? Is that the requirement? Maybe Mr. Canfield you can…you can articulate that? Again, if you have a major break of a lateral of that size which is much different that which would come to my home which is a 3 / 4 inch line that lateral having a break would, in fact, impact the public system in that general vicinity so. To that extent I think that somebody needs to pay for that maybe. And also a comment relative to the developer may or may not have known, I just went back and pulled up my copy of the Master Plan dated October, 2005, Exhibit 3-16, effectively articulated that the zoning in that area was, in fact, going to change. So that's roughly four months prior to this project being approved. (Inaudible) I guess that's it relative to this core issues. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Corbin: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Do we have anyone else who would like to comment at this time? Yes?

Mr. Donovan: Just for the Board's edification, I did get an e-mail, I did let the Chair know, from the Town Attorney's office at about 5:30 today asking that the Hearing be held open so they have the opportunity to appear and make a…I don't know what they wanted to do, make a submittal perhaps but they did ask that the Hearing be held open, I'd just communicate that to you.

Chairperson Cardone: I will communicate the same thing I got a phone call just as I was walking out the door to come to the meeting from the Town Attorney asking if could possibly hold the Hearing open.

Ms. Gonyea:  Is that what David just said, the Town…

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Ms. Gonyea:  Well basically I'm concerned because I…about the process tonight, because I think there are two issues and you can correct me if I'm wrong. It's the bonding issue…

Chairperson Cardone: Did you…did you, I didn't hear you…

Ms. Gonyea:  Ellen Jane Gonyea, 26 Linden Drive. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you.

Ms. Gonyea:  I'm sorry, Grace. Are there indeed two issues that you are going to deal with? Are you going to deal with them separately, the bonding and then the vested rights expiration dates?

Chairperson Cardone: The first issue that we have to deal with is the vested rights and depending on the outcome of that, would decide whether or not we would go on to the other interpretations.

Ms. Gonyea: Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: If I am incorrect then our counsel will let me know that.

Mr. Donovan: There has been countervailing argument by Mr. Golden this evening about whether or not we need to reach the issue of public improvements. I don't know the answer to that. My initial inclination was if we issued a determination that there was not vested rights we wouldn't need to reach that issue and I don't know if anyone else is familiar with this. It was my understanding and I'm only looking at you, Jerry, because maybe you know the answer to this…that the Town Board was perhaps considering some amendments to their Code defining bonding for public and private improvements. Is anyone aware of that?

Mr. Hughes: That's true.   

Mr. Canfield: Yes, the Town is in the process of amending the requirements of securities being posted however, it was in the lines or to the sense of deferred payment and not necessarily with public improvement or improvements required. They were more in line with landscaping and it was not a exemption of the payment of the security but a deferment. 

Ms. Gonyea: That was my understanding too.

Mr. Canfield: Excuse me?

Ms. Gonyea: That was my understanding too. 

Mr. Canfield: Thank you. First time you ever agreed with me.  

Ms. Gonyea: Well we do have a history, Mr. Canfield. 

Mr. Canfield: But yes it was a deferment…

Ms. Gonyea: I'm not dead yet.

Mr. Canfield: …deferred payment for landscaping and others and they were hinged upon at the time of the issuance of the first C. of O. for the project.

Mr. Hughes: They're also looking at fee schedule revisions too for certain things. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K. So there is some lack of clarity on that issue.

Ms. Gonyea: Yeah, so I believe that this forty-five minute experience in the bonding discussion muddled the basic issue as to why we came here tonight and that is to decide on a timeline and an upholding of the law which does exist. I think it can be boiled down to just looking at the calendar and counting out the days and very clearly for the first time, voting on a simple calculation. Not engineering but just math, the timeline for the accomplishment of the task set out for the developer has elapsed and very simply, you ladies and gentlemen have the opportunity to hold the law in favor of the residents and we ask you to hold the law. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: I believe that, in answer to your statement, I believe that there were other issues that we would have to decide in order to uphold the law and that was what our counsel had outlined before.

Mr. Donovan: Yeah, I think in terms of the chronology obviously the statutory vested rights have lapsed. If they hadn't lapsed the application wouldn't be here. So the issue is whether or not there's something called common law vested rights and if you don't understand my explanation you can ask Mr. Corbin because he's very well versed on that issue. But what I discussed before whether or not there's been substantial improvements and expenditures so substantial that any municipal action would result in a serious loss rendering those improvements essentially valueless so its not a bright line test as the courts say but there is some so there is some analysis required on our part as to whether or not that common law vesting which Mr. Golden is advancing as his argument has in fact occurred. So the statutory vested period has clearly lapsed but that's why he's here tonight.  

Ms. Gonyea: Thank you.     

Mr. Hughes: I'd like to say something at this point as well and I hope no one in the audience thinks that anyone ever comes here and buys a hand or fools us. The Board is very well experienced at what goes on on both sides of the counter here. But I'd like to go back to the reference about Orangetown and Magee and I believe it’s a nice story but I don't think it applies here. In that situation, the Supervisor had put pressure on the Building Department and ordered them to revoke the Building Permit. So it really doesn't run a parallel story here to what we have in front of us. And I agree with counsel and the feeling of the audience that there's really no question about that part of it that the time has lapsed but I really don't believe that the common law end of the law has been clearly described either and I don't think that there's enough substantial investment other than engineering fees which someone would have to endure anyway. Now moving fast-forward, and by the way it was very nice presentation…  

Mr. Golden: I'm only (inaudible) the first; I haven't started my presentation on vesting.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, well, good luck. What I'm going to say now is that when all the dust settles no matter how much engineering fees and how much dirt they moved around up to this point, they still have the land that they can sell, so it render it worthless. Let's keep this in mind while we go along. And I might need a little break in between if you think it's going to go on that long, if you don't mind? 

Mr. Golden: (Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Counsel? 

Mr. Donovan: I'm not in charge of breaks. Sorry.

Chairperson Cardone: No, if you need to step out for a minute, that's O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Any comment about where we're at with this thing?

Chairperson Cardone: I think that we should proceed with the argument strictly for the vested rights and stay on topic.

Mr. Golden: All right. Would you like me to respond to some of the comments that were made?

Chairperson Cardone: If they pertain to vested rights only. 

Mr. Golden: O.K. then since very few of the comments dealt with vested rights then I'll move on and the few comments that were made with respect to vested rights including the case citation I'll be answering with respect to my presentation on vested rights. Now I agree with Mr. Donovan that in fact statutory vested rights have ended. There is no argument with respect to that. But if the court had indicated that we had three years measured from January of 2006 for vested rights, statutory vested rights and that ended in January of 2009. That's clear. As Mr. Donovan said, that's not why we're here. We're not here, if you counted the days you would end up in January 2009 and we're past that. But statutory vested rights is not what we're here for today. What we're here for today is something that is substantially different than statutory vested rights, which has a specific timeframe in it and is limited to that timeframe and is limited to that timeframe. We're dealing with common law rights. Common law vested rights, now I don't imagine that you get very may requests before you in this Board to opine on common law vested rights so I'd appreciate a little indulgence on giving me my opportunity to explain to you what I think common law vested rights is and the standards that apply to it and then the fact situation with respect to Mr. Fried as how that fits in to the standards on common law vested rights. First of all we're talking about the common law vested rights so I think it's valid to try to understand what the common law is. And I'll be very brief but I think it's very important to understand what this is. There are basically four sources of law that we all have to deal with. One is constitutional, another one is what Town Boards do, State legislatures do, County legislatures do, Congress does, they pass statutes or codes, right, that's another source of law. And that in fact, is where the statutory vesting comes in is that the legislature in 1960 in the State of New York said, you can have vested rights in the prior zoning if in fact you filed a subdivision and that's for three years. That was done by the State Legislature of New York in 1960 but long before that we had common law vested rights. So we had constitutional law as one source, we have legislative laws, statutes as another source of law, a third source of law is the executive branch of governments whether it be the president and the executive branch of the Federal government or the governor in the executive branch of the state government or the executive branch of county government or when the Town Board acts as an executive body. And they pass also things that we have to follow as laws, rules and regulations, ordinances, executive orders, things like that. It is the fourth branch that we're dealing with with respect to the common law. The common law is simply this, we have courts out there and those courts many times are interpreting the constitution, the statutes, the executive orders all these laws made by other people. They are interpreting them, they're applying them and that's a big part what they do as courts. But there's another part of what courts do and that is that if a matter comes before them that doesn't fit into a constitutional issue or state statute or a federal statute or any executive order or rule or regulation and they still have to rule on it when they make their decision their decision is the common law. And a lot of what you deal with in your ordinary life deals with the common law. Much of contract law deals with the common law, the courts created all those rules dealing with breaches of contract, etc. for most contracts. Real property, a lot of that real property law of house transfers, of rights and easements most of that deals with common law. Judges made those rules over time and still do today. So that's what we're dealing with the common law vested rights were created by the courts so its necessary for us to look at those decisions in order to determine what are common law vested rights. When you deal with your variances, your area variances for instances like you did several times this evening. All of you were familiar with the fact that you have to apply a five-part balancing test with respect to area variances. a four-part test with respect to use variances. And where do we get that? We get that from the statute, New York State statute says this is what you have to do and this Board has no authority to vary those tests. They can't say we only want to do a two-part test and we don't like that balance we're going to do a different balance. You can't do that because you're obligated to follow the State statute. In my opinion, you're also obligated to follow the common law vesting standards that are set forth by the courts and so we have to look at the courts, we can't just say as Zoning Board Officials that in fact, well the court decisions those are for lawyers. That's the lawyer stuff involved. I'm going to go over just four cases. I have cited those but I have cited a lot of others in my papers but I'm just for illustrative going to talk about just four cases to try to show to you what I believe is the proper standard that you have to apply with respect to common law vesting and then I will briefly talk about…I'll talk about it in great length if you want but otherwise I'll talk about it briefly with respect to how Mr. Fried fits into those tests because I think that is the crux of the vesting issue that we have to do. Now vesting is not a brand new concept, even common law vesting is not a brand new concept to you in a sense because it is really just a branch of the law dealing with non-conforming uses. Just like you know that if there is a pre-existing non-conforming use and someone raised that earlier tonight if you have that use and then the zoning changes the courts have dictated through the common law that fairness dictates that that use is still allowed to continue even though the zoning has changed. It’s the same principal with common law vesting. Common law vesting is based upon fairness, that in fact if you have reached a certain level of effort and we'll get to that, the courts have held that its unfair and therefore illegal to say that you are now going to be subject to new zoning. They say, just like a pre-existing, non-conforming use you have to comply with the old zoning not with the new zoning. So it's not an entirely new concept. All right? Let me address those four cases for you. And we'll get to Orangetown versus Magee and the issue dealing with the Town interference had nothing to do with the vesting. That had to do with the violation of the civil rights provision of that lawsuit. The court also dealt in Orangetown versus Magee with a straight vesting issue under State law. Now this is a case 1990 case, Kadin versus the Board of Standard Appeals of New York and again I'm just going to show you just a brief quote from this again to set the standard for what we are supposed to be doing. As Mr. Donovan indicated earlier, there is no fixed formula which measure the contents of all the circumstances whereby a party is said to possess the vested right rather it is a term which sums up a determination that the facts of the case render it inequitable, as unfair, that a municipality impede the individual from taking certain action. Each case must be determined according to its own circumstances. The second case that I'd like to identify for you is the Ellington Construction Corporation case, the highest court in New York. Oh, one other thing on the Kadin that I wanted to just sort of button one thing up is that I believe that this Board and I argue in my papers has the ability and obligation to hear this case on vested rights both because its an appeal from the Building Inspector's decision which effectively denied the common law vesting and you have all the powers that a Building Inspector does in hearing that appeal but also in that Kadin case, the Kadin case said that the Zoning Board is in fact the proper Board to go ahead and hear and determine whether or not common law vesting has occurred. So it is your job and that's why I'm trying to show from my perspective what the standard is similar to if I was up here for an area variance I'd be talking about the five-factors of the balancing test. In Ellington said the New York both before and after the exception statutes, that's the statutory vesting statutes, has been that where a more restrictive zoning ordinance is enacted an owner will be permitted to complete a structure or a development which an amendment has rendered non-conforming only where the owner undertaken, and this is similar to what Mr. Donovan was saying, substantial construction and made substantial expenditures prior to the effective date of the amendment. The doctrine of vested rights has generally been described as an application of the constitutionally based common law rule protecting non-conforming uses but the doctrine is also said to have been grounded in principals of equitable estoppel and fairness. Now what Ellington also said, and Mr. Donovan referred to this earlier, another element of this in addition to the substantial improvements and the substantial expenditures is that whatever improvements in the land that you have done have been rendered by the zoning essentially valueless. All right? So it's really kind of three components and we'll come back to those in a minute. Now in Ellington Construction there was a different fact situation than we have here. Right? And my job obviously is to try to fit my case into some common law vesting case that's similar to ours. Ellington had much more development that went on in the case then what we have, very admittedly. That was a two-phase development, the first phase they had built out completely with seven homes and then they started a second phase and they put in substantial infrastructure, I forget the exact extent of it but roads, at least one road, they had pipes in there for water and sewer I believe and other important infrastructure developments, substantial. Then the zoning changed and they went to get a Building Permit for a single house for that second phase and the Building Inspector said, no, denied it and the courts held that no in Ellington the court you can't deny it, they had vested, they had done enough clearly more than Mr. Fried has done but they had done enough there that wasn't the only standard those are the facts of that case. They had done enough, that they had vested under the common law and therefore you could not stop them from completing their project. That was Ellington. Now I have Orangetown v. Magee and again only on the vested, common law vesting issue. In New York a vested right can be acquired when pursuant to a legally issued permit and remember we had two legally issued Permit. We had a Building Permit to take down the two water towers that the Town made us take down and we had a Clearing and Grading Permit both validly issued to carry out our approved Site Plan under the old zoning. When pursuant to a legally issued Permit the landowner demonstrates a commitment to the purpose for which the Permit was granted by effecting substantial changes. Again this is not substantial construction at this point in time and you'll know why in a second. Substantial changes and incurring substantial expenses to further the development. Right? Now in Orangetown v. Magee they done site preparation work, including clearing and grading, there was no building construction ever performed in Magee that they found common law vested rights. No footings were even put in for the structures. Nevertheless the court held that the developer had sufficiently committed the land to the use authorized by the Permit and therefore was vested. But as an attorney for a client, obviously I am trying to find the case that's best, very rarely, Mr. Donovan will tell you, its very rarely do you find a case that they call on all fours, that is its just like your case. I think I found a case that's a close as you can come and in fact, it's referenced as authority for the Orangetown Magee case on the vesting issue, called Ortenberg v. Bales. So lets take a look at Ortenberg v. Bales and the facts were that three months after issuing a Building Permit for the work the City of New York changed the zoning of the property from a business district to a residential district. Now you can bet that that builder knew when they got their Building Permit that the zoning was going to change. All right? Three months. There was approximately, I think, eight or nine months between when Exeter got their first permit and when they ran out of time under the statutory vesting. During those three months, the owner had, and this is all that's in the record this is all that has said that this owner did demolish the garage on the property, remove the cesspool, filled it in, entered into some contracts for subsequent building construction and excavated an area thirty-seven feet by forty-five feet by seven feet deep. No footings for the buildings or any building construction had taken place by the time that the new zoning law took effect. So this is all that was done, dug a hole thirty-seven by forty-five by seven, removed a cesspool, demolished a garage and entered into some contracts for the building construction. That's all that was done and the court found that person that was vested. In fact here under this case when the zoning came into effect the City Building Inspector revoked the Building Permit said the zoning has changed, you can't go forward. This is now residential, they wanted to build commercial and so they revoked the Permit. The court here, which was upheld by the highest court in New York, including one of the most esteemed judges that this country has ever seen, Judge Cardozo, went ahead and said no, that was wrong to revoke that Building Permit. They had vested rights because of this particular work and what the court had said, in the decision in the appellate division, is "when a builder has gone so far under a lawful permit as not alone to enter upon various contracts but actually to make a substantial excavation…" This was the substantial excavation, thirty-seven feet by forty-five feet by seven feet. "…on the land in reliance on the Permit when there is and can be no dispute about his intention…" As in his intention to go forward with the building project and development, "…it would be a harsh rule not only to abrogate his contracts but also to say that he had not gone far enough in the work of construction to constitute a commencement of his work and so deprive him of the right to utilize his land in the lawful manner intended because some change of use had been thereafter promulgated", by the City of New York in changing the zoning. The court was very clear, in a part that I didn't quote you, but was very clear in the decision that in fact they were comparing, well does a building construction have to occur and the answer was no that this was sufficient. Now that thirty-seven feet by forty-five feet by seven feet, eleven thousand, six hundred and fifty-five cubic feet which I am told and math tells you is four hundred and thirty-two cubic yards. Four hundred and thirty-two cubic yards, that's an important number. So what can we glean from this these cases and in fact if you add in all of the cases you're going to come up with these same three factors. Was there a substantial modification to the land? Some cases say construction because the construction occurred but in the cases where the construction had not occurred they don't mention that construction has to happen. There are substantial changes in this case it was a substantial excavation. I think its clear that if there are substantial modifications to the land that's the test. One of what, I think, is a three-part test in order to establish common law vesting. 

Mr. Hughes: Do you happen to know how big this parcel was?

Mr. Golden: This parcel was approximately twice the size of that excavated area, I believe.

Mr. Hughes: And where would you say your project is in a parallel comparison to that ratio proportion? 

Mr. Golden: I'm not sure. I would guess it's certainly less than half. The part that we improved…


Mr. Hughes: How many acres is your…

Mr. Golden: Twenty-nine.

Mr. Hughes: And you're saying that this is certainly less than half?

Mr. Golden: No, no I'm not saying that. 

Mr. Hughes: Then I must have lost…

Mr. Golden: I thought you were asking what size of this excavated area was the total area on this project.

Mr. Hughes: No what size is the total parcel?

Mr. Golden: In Ortenberg? The court did make reference to it but I think it was in connection with how big that excavation was but I'll look in a second. In a plot of ground in the ground in the borough of Queens they wanted to erect six one-story brick stores.

Mr. Hughes: So they're probably twenty-five foot lots.

Mr. Golden: I think its one lot. It's one lot and they wanted to put six stores on it and that's how big the excavation was at that point in time. 

Mr. Hughes: So you have no other mathematical references to this formula that you want us to work with except the…?

Mr. Golden: I'm not saying that you vest if you have a hole thirty-seven feet by forty-five feet by seven feet. I'm not saying that at all.

Mr. Hughes: No, I'm not either but what I'm saying is…

Mr. Golden: O.K. but then we're in agreement?

Mr. Hughes: …you're trying to…if I said to you, well I drank half a bottle but the bottle of water was the size of a bathtub I would be misrepresenting to you the half a bottle here that I'm showing you if the bottle was as tall as you are.

Mr. Golden: But the court in this case did not say that it was because they excavated half of their property that was important.

Mr. Hughes: We don't know what the property was. Let's just say the property was fifty-by-fifty and they made that excavation…

Mr. Golden: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: …that's a substantial portion of fifty-by-fifty.

Mr. Golden: There is no case that talks about the portion of the lot as being important when you're talking about modification of the land. They talk about what was done. They talk about specifically what was done on those particular cases, those particular fact situations and determine whether or not that was substantial enough to satisfy common law vesting. This court along with the other issues of demolishing a garage and removing a cesspool, they excavated an area of thirty-seven feet by forty-five feet by seven, that court said, which was upheld by the highest court in this state, that in fact that was adequate for vesting purposes.

Mr. Hughes: Well I wasn't around in 1929 but I'm sure the law has changed a little bit since then.

Mr. Golden: Well it hasn't because remember... 

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a case that's more current and more believable in modern times that we could tune in to?

Mr. Golden: Well we have a 1996 case, Town of Orangetown v. Magee, which relied upon that case. So that means…


Mr. Hughes: So Ortenberg and Bales is one and the same as…

Mr. Golden: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: And did you couple them together for a particular reason or was it just from the hip?

Mr. Golden: I've read all the cases dealing with the vested rights.

Mr. Hughes: I have too; I've got a book here that publishes all of them.

Mr. Golden: Right. And if you go through all of those, my proposition to this Board is that if you distill them down to what are the essential elements in order to establish a common law vesting plane and I believe adequately and not overstating the case that it comes down to three issues and that's what I was starting. The first issue was whether or not there was a substantial modification to the land, the second issue is whether or not there have been substantial expenditures in connection with the project and third that have the land modifications that have been made were they essentially valueless if they're subject to the new zoning? And I think if you look at all the cases I believe that you will find that this is an accurate representation of what the three elements are but you should rely on upon your counsel to concur in that or not.

Mr. Hughes: So if you would refresh my memory please. What was the total number of acres on your applicant's parcel that we're talking about tonight? Mr. Fried's. 

Mr. Golden: The total number of acres of the project?

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Golden: Twenty-nine. 

Mr. Hughes: Oh. And on that you said you were going to build how many homes? 

Mr. Golden: There were thirty-four town homes.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Golden: Or, I'm going to make…to get this right, thirty-four town homes with four units in each one for a total of one hundred and thirty-six units.

Mr. Hughes: One hundred and thirty-six units on twenty-nine acres. So now I guess the biggest complaint that your applicant would have now that with the new zoning regulations being at forty thousand per dwelling unit in that area you would probably only be able to get twenty-nine buildings but if you deducted the cost of what it would take to put those one hundred and thirty-six units on the property in order to go to a different plan I don't see where its rendering the value of the land to nothing.

Mr. Golden: It doesn't render the value of the land to nothing.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. 

Mr. Golden: And I'm not arguing that. If I was arguing that I'd be saying it’s a constitutional taking and I'm not arguing that.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Golden: In fact, in the papers I have told you that in fact we believe that if they go ahead and build the twenty-three lot subdivision it would be valued at several million dollars but that's not the test of common law vesting.

Mr. Hughes: No, I…

Mr. Golden: That may be a wonderful test. That may be a wonderful test but in fact I'll come back to what I said before this Board is bound by the five-part balancing test for variances, they're bound to the elements of common law vesting. You can't change that. The common law says this is what it is. I believe that a proper distillation of those cases comes out with these three essential elements. You're going to rely upon your counsel to determine whether he agrees with that or not but that's the test. You can't say that well I think there should be a different test. You don't have that luxury with variances. You don't have that luxury with common law vesting. Now let's…those are the cases. Let's get to Mr. Fried and how he compares to that standard that I just talked about. This is basically a picture of it undisturbed before the construction, this is a similar but not identical viewpoint showing the movement of dirt and soil and excavation necessary to go ahead and plot in the roads in accordance with the Clearing and Grading Permit. Now shown here, but in your books are the pictures dealing with taking down the water towers, taking the foundation out for those towers again just two pictures. These pictures are in your booklets along with other pictures. I don't want to go over all of them because that would be tiresome but I just want to use these for illustrative purposes. If you want me to go over all of them I would be happy to. This again, is what I believe shows some substantial excavation in connection with this project. This is…how long that was…thought it was one hundred and seventy lineal feet but its in the…its in the record, of some drainage pipe that had to be installed in order to make sure conformance with SPDES Permits of the DEC, etc. that which this is subject to that in fact the proper drainage was being done in connection with this construction. And there are stockpiles that are higher than this and they're obviously in your…in your papers. So given all of that, I'll do one more briefly. This is an aerial view, the white lines are the lines of the plan for the roadway and some of the homes that are part of the approved site plan and this was the excavation work from a bird's eye view with respect to what was…what was accomplished this was all cleared and graded here, this is actually the large stockpile and this is the road that was excavated out and there were several building pads that were also excavated out. And I believe the drainage basin over here as well as that, I think is its one hundred and seventy lineal feet of drainage pipe to make sure that the property drained correctly and wasn't spilling off site in conformance with the SPDES Permit that governed this project. They also constructed the construction entrance off of 17K. I just want to quickly compare our case to Ortenberg. Ortenberg found that it was improper for the Building Inspector to have revoked the Permit on a project after they had started and performed a certain amount of work. I want to compare those now it'll just take a minute but I think its essential. There is no doubt that with Ortenberg, I think it’s the one that's the closest to our situation we did not have like in Ellington houses up on a first phase and substantial infrastructure on the second phase. We're closer to Orangetown v. Magee, which also didn't have any construction of any buildings whatsoever. No buildings well I mean no footings for any buildings whatsoever but did site work, clearing work and had done other substantial financial obligations that the Town there had required them to go in. In Ortenberg you had and some of the issues that weren't outlined in that summary that I had before you but if in fact if you look at the case this is the totality of all that was done for that project. They sold a home on the project that would then be demolished. That was one issue that they did in furtherance of their project. They demolished a garage on the property. A cesspool was removed and filled in. We talked previously about the excavation of the thirty-seven feet by forty-five feet by seven feet, which equals four hundred and thirty-two cubic yards. They had made contracts and no construction or footings. There was some dispute in the case about whether or not there were or were not footings that were done prior zone change but the ultimate resolution was there were no footings done. Let's talk about Mr. Fried what did he do? The first one is that he removed an existing house that was on the property.    

Mr. Manley: Didn't that house burn down?

Mr. Golden: The house burned down and he removed the rest of the house including the foundation. The other one, simply sold the house, they didn't remove it. All right? All they did was sell the house and it was eventually going to be demolished.      

Mr. Manley: I just wanted to make sure that…I didn't know if you knew it burned down.

Mr. Golden: Yes, yeah. Thank you. Mr. Fried demolished and removed the two forty foot water towers including the removal and the recycling of the concrete foundation and installation restraining bars. He removed an old barn foundation. 

Ms. Eaton: Mr. Golden, did you say those water towers were on the Town property and not on Mr. Fried's?

Mr. Golden: It clearly was not on Mr. Fried's property but Mr. Fried was obligated under his site plan to remove them because the Town obligated them to as part of the extension of the water and sewer districts. So he had to that he could not have had a completed project if he didn't remove those two forty foot water towers. 

Mr. Manley: Would you say it was more of an obligation or an agreement?

Mr. Golden: An obligation. Mr. Fried was not looking to go ahead and voluntarily take down two forty-foot water towers.

Mr. Manley: So that wasn't…it wasn't that he in order to get an agreement to hook up to the water system that he agreed to remove the towers or…?

Mr. Golden: That part is…to characterize it like that, yes. The Town said, among many other conditions take down the two towers and if you agree to all of this then we'll extend your district. And he said yes.

Mr. Manley: Right. O.K. But there was choice? A clear choice, yes?

Mr. Golden: He could have said I don't the water and sewer district extension, yes. 

Mr. Manley: And he could have put his own sewer system and his own water system, right? 

Mr. Golden: Absolutely but that's not what happened.

Mr. Manley: Right. I'm just trying to get that cleared up. Thank you.

Mr. Golden: He was obligated to take down these towers that his site plan said that he had to take down those towers because he had to follow all of the conditions in the water and sewer district extensions. Removing the old barn foundation. He also filled in two associated pits. His excavation, he cleared two hundred and forty-eight thousand square feet of trees and vegetation. A construction entrance was installed and approximately thirty-six thousand cubic yards was excavated on the project in order to create roads for the project, make room for the installation of the sewage, water and drainage pipes and to prepare the land for construction the roads were filled and graded. He entered into contracts in order to go ahead and do all of that work and there was no building, construction or footings. However, here it is, he did install one hundred and seventy lineal feet of pipe and those pictures are in the book that you have, one hundred and ten tons of stone in connection with that. So that's what we have as a comparison between Ortenberg, which found that there was common law vesting and Mr. Fired. Now its up to this Board to go ahead and look at the facts of Mr. Fried and make your own determination as to whether or not consistent with Ortenberg and the other cases and the standards as to whether or not there is common law vesting. But our position is that if in fact you find that the elements of the common law vesting dictated by the courts, that you cannot change, allows these improvements to satisfy the common law testing test which is what I believe then what we are asking you to do is go ahead and issue an opinion and a decision whereby you indicated that the work performed by Mr. Fried as demonstrated here tonight and in the application before you satisfies enough. It may not be the most that was done in order to get a common law vesting but it satisfies whatever the minimum, more than the minimum amount that's required in order to have common law vesting and that's what I'm asking this Board to do is to go ahead and…and issue a decision in that regard. Now as far as, that's the substantial modification. The two other issues, the substantial expenditures I talked about them briefly before. There's three hundred thousand dollars in project approvals going through the project the engineering for, it was talked about before, about whether or not this made sense with the other sewer and water in the area. All of that was worked out during the Planning Board stage in the environmental review there and that was concurred in and tested as far as the theories and the drawings by the Town engineer and the Planning Board engineer, both of them and they required several changes in the plans in order to satisfy to make sure that not only for this project but indeed for potential future build out in the area that in fact the design of the system here was sufficient. And that and any other expenses of actual engineering not simply sitting before a Planning Board and making a presentation, none of those costs were included. And then there was one hundred and fifty thousand dollars in the site improvements. Now as to the land modifications essentially valueless, now it doesn't say valueless for anything in the world but its valueless in connection with what he would be able to do under the new zoning. So what he can do under the new zoning is twenty-three lots or twenty-three units however he does it. To clear an area like this and do the necessary improvements that were done here cannot be used on a twenty-three-lot subdivision. There is no one that reasonably would put twenty-three lots around this road that was excavated. You have a twenty-nine-acre piece of parcel. You would clearly do it in a different way. And you have an affidavit in the record from the engineer saying that these are essentially valueless if in fact you are now relegated to a twenty-three-lot subdivision on this parcel. These could not be used. This would all have to be re-graded, refilled; the thirty-six thousand cubic yards could not be reused for purposes of utilizing this layout and these drainage pits and the pads. That is what we believe satisfies the test of having this essentially valueless under the new zoning. Not that in fact you couldn't build a road here. Sure you could build a road here. It'd be a road to nowhere. Right? Because the twenty-three lots would be elsewhere you'd have to go ahead and…and improve the lots to gain access to those and that's what we contend is essentially valueless. So we believe that we satisfied the three tests that are essential for the purposes of the common law vesting and I don't want to take up anymore time. I'd be happy to answer any questions of the Board. I thank you for your patience and allowing me to go through this but I thought that because the is not an…the type of application that you get routinely that I thought it would be helpful if I went ahead and set this forth. Thank you.

Mr. Manley: Mr. Golden, under Ortenberg could you maybe, because I haven't had a chance to read the entire opinion of Ortenberg but could you maybe just tell me, in the opinion what amount of money were they looking at with regard to the number of improvements that were done in Ortenberg that court used in its opinion?

Mr. Golden: They didn't talk about the dollar value of the improvements. They did talk about, obviously in 1929 dollars, they did talk about the contracts that were entered into, the brickwork that was going to go up if in fact this project was done was twenty-three hundred dollars for six buildings. That's pretty good in today's dollar. Plumbing was eighteen hundred and twenty dollars, lumber was thirteen hundred and twenty-five and trim was four hundred and fifty-three dollars and fifty cents. But they did not do a calculation nor obviously did the court deem it necessary to do a calculation as to the value of those improvements.

Mr. Manley: So is it fair to then use the…only part of the comparison of Ortenberg? When you're comparing it to your client Mr. Fried you're indicating that there's other costs, three hundred thousand, one hundred and fifty thousand, if you are going to use Ortenberg is it fair to just use only a piece of it?

Mr. Golden: Well I'm not…I'm not using only a piece of Ortenberg, I'm using all of Ortenberg not only am I using all of Ortenberg but I'm also using all of the other vested, common law vested rights cases including Ellington and Orangetown v. Magee, etc. that have talked about these same issues and also added the essentially valueless. That wasn't part of Ortenberg.

Mr. Manley: So basically…basically what we're doing is taking pieces of opinions of…

Mr. Golden: No. I don't think we are. I hate to cut you but we're…I'm really not taking Ortenberg and saying you just have to read Ortenberg and we're all set. Right? 

Mr. Manley: But you're using…you're not just using Ortenberg you're using the other cases as well to…

Mr. Golden: Yes. I am.

Mr. Manley: …to substantiate the…the case with respect to your client. Is that…?

Mr. Golden: That's correct but Ortenberg is still good law. It was cited by the highest court in the State of New York in 1996 and there's been no case that has modified it or reduced its value since that time. And if it was good enough to support the Orangetown, I think it was Orangetown v. Magee case then its good enough law for purposes of this three part test because otherwise there wouldn't have…have cited it for authority.

Mr. Manley: Thank you. 

Mr. Donovan: Now I haven't read all… I'm sorry, Grace.

Chairperson Cardone: There was someone in the public who wanted to make a comment. Yes? 

Ms. Monell: I'm Eleanor Monell, 20 Westwood Drive, Newburgh, New York and the way I understand this is that the applicant has three years to make substantial improvements? Is that what this second part of this certified mail is about? I think that's what it said in there. And that was so that the applicant could hold on to their variance. Now I wondered if the ZBA got a copy of the original judgment that the judge handed down that said you have three years from such and such a date, you know to make substantial improvements?

Mr. Donovan: Well maam, I think the answer is there was a vested rights period for three years by statute now the issue tonight is whether or not there's been enough improvements to have what is known as common law vested rights. 

Ms. Monell: O.K. so then we're going to go to the site plan approval stated that they had to remove those water tanks. That was a condition of final approval. As was the demolition of a deteriorated building that was another issue.  So that was done on behalf of the developer to approve his own site plan approval that to me is not a substantial improvement as the judge handed down. Just like the moving of all the dirt and to make an entranceway? You're going to call that a substantial improvement? That was…how else are you going to get on the property if you don't make an entranceway? To me that's part that preceded the substantial improvements. I seem to think substantial in the improvements in the last three years to get the vested rights would have been something like installing sidewalks, blacktop, curbs…

Chairperson Cardone: That's the issue we have to decide.

Ms. Monell: Yes, so I just wanted to make that very clear because just like clearing and grading, you have a Permit to do that, that's for your best interest you have to reach that point that should not count as substantial improvements. So I just wanted to make sure that was in the record. Just like a three hundred thousand dollars and you're including engineering fees? Well, how else are you going get to where you are going if you don't have engineering fees? But that is not a substantial improvement and I guess it goes back to the definition of substantial improvement and that Mr. Donahue (Donovan) I am sure can provide to you. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.  

Mr. Donovan: There was a question I had before and I haven't read every case but my question is if you go back to Ortenberg was the Permit pursuant to which improvements were being done a Building Permit to construct a building? If you know the answer to that…? Here's my…I'm looking at the site plan approval and there's twenty some conditions, eighteen conditions and I don't think you satisfied all of those conditions.

Mr. Golden: No.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. So, you could not have, as I understand it, drawn a Building Permit to begin building any buildings so you've got a Clearing and Grading Permit and I just want to clarify it for my own piece of mind, what kind of Permits were relied upon in the Ortenberg case or the Orangetown Magee case if they were merely, I say merely if there was Clearing and Grading Permit or something short of a Building Permit for the purpose of constructing say a house. Cause my real question is, you have…you could not have built any of your condominiums so, do acquire vested rights in this approval when in fact you couldn't have built pursuant to this approval? All you could do is clear and grade the site. 

Mr. Golden: I don't think that it matters quite frankly. What the courts are clear on and none of them focus on exactly the type of Permit that you have its just that you have an authorization to proceed, to progress your project, that's what all of them have in common. And the query that all of the courts focus on, on that one element, is what have you done pursuant to validly issued Permits not where you just went off and did something without a valid Permit but what have you done to progress your project under a valid Permit. And then we measure whether or not that's a substantial improvement toward getting your project done and that's the fairness on it, they say what you move down the road far enough and in Ortenberg and some of these…in Orangetown v. Magee it was not very far that's going to be enough under those cases for you to establish the substantial changes in the land. In Ortenberg all it said, Mr. Donovan was, they proposed to erect six one-story brick stores and the Building Department duly issued a Permit. I assume it's to go ahead and build those stores, a Building Permit, afterwards they just talk about such Permit, etc. They don't identify it any further. On Orangetown v. Magee, it didn't have any buildings on it…

Mr. Donovan: Here's the fundamental thing that I'm having a problem with…

Mr. Golden: They also had a Building Permit but I don't know exactly the context. As you know some Building Permits only permit you do certain things.

Mr. Donovan: Correct, Correct.  

Mr. Golden: We had a Building Permit to take down the two towers. 

Mr. Donovan: Right. But, I'm a client and I know I have my three statutory vesting period and I know I'm not going to get a Building Permit because I'm not going to satisfy my conditions of approval to start building my buildings so, what I can't reconcile is the whole idea of common law vested rights is an equitable doctrine of fundamental fairness. O.K.? So, my three years is running out, I can't get a Building Permit to build a building so I get some intermediate Permit to try to gain vested rights…

Mr. Golden: That's correct.

Mr. Donovan: …so, the question in my mind is do you have unclean hands? 

Mr. Golden: No.

Mr. Donovan: Because you…

Mr. Golden: Does Ortenberg have unclean hands? 

Mr. Donovan: Well, but…

Mr. Golden: They changed the zoning code three months after he got his Permit. 

Mr. Donovan: But…

Mr. Golden: You don't think that he knew that the zoning was going to be changing and he rushed to get as much done as possible…?

Mr. Donovan: I have no idea. I have no idea what Ortenberg did. But if you know you can't make the three-year period do you rush to get another approval to try to acquire vested rights when the purpose of vested rights is to give equitable relief when there is an unfair situation?

Mr. Golden: Because you are able to go ahead and…and move forward and that moving forward is enough so now its unfair to say you have to undo all that as long as you were moving forward towards your project and that's the essential fairness of this. It…I mean, otherwise you would sit back and the arguments would not be the arguments that were addressed in these cases, the argument would be well let's look at prospectively when Ortenberg or others got their Permit was it proper for them to say I can finish all of my buildings in three months time? None of that analysis has shown up in any case. 

Mr. Donovan: But in Ortenberg they wouldn't know that three years was expiring because that statute didn't come in to play until 1960 so they didn't have that same type of barrier that they tried to get around. 

Mr. Golden: But the rezone happened. The rezone happened within three months.

Mr. Donovan: But they didn't get a Building Permit with the knowledge that they were going to run out of time. At least I don't think so.

Mr. Golden: I don't think even in 1929 that you would have been able to complete that work within the three months time.    

Mr. Donovan: But you could change the zoning within three months.

Mr. Golden: What do you mean you could change the zoning?

Mr. Donovan: Well whatever barrier was raised with Ortenberg…

Mr. Golden: Ortenberg was that they got a Building Permit that was proper to build a commercial, six commercial stores and then three months later the zoning changed to residential so they couldn't go forward but they had progressed somewhat to the limited extent shown here…

Mr. Donovan: But what I'm saying is…

Mr. Golden:  …and then said that was enough. 

Mr. Donovan: I don't know that Mr. and Mrs. Ortenberg knew that the zoning was going to change and…

Mr. Golden: No, none of us know for sure.

Mr. Donovan: But in this case, Mr. Fried knew his three years was going to lapse.

Mr. Golden: Yes. That's not a distinction that is even broached in any of these and maybe...

Mr. Donovan: That doesn't mean I can't reconcile it. That's the problem.

Mr. Golden: Well, you know, it also means that, you know, that if you were sitting on the Court of Appeals maybe that might be a good argument and another test to throw in there but in fact, we all have to live with the cases that have discussed this and that was never an issue in any of these cases as to intent or possibility of how much you should do. It is actually how much was done and was that substantial.  

Mr. Hughes: I have some questions if I may?

Chairperson Cardone: Certainly. 

Mr. Hughes: What both you gentlemen are saying is 85% of what's going on here but I have two big things here that I just can't seem to wrap my hands around and get a clear view on. Number one, if you are going to proceed forward after the time expires you have to be moving forward to complete it with a valid Permit to do so and there is no valid Permit in this case here, that I can see, anywhere other than he took the tanks down and he had a Clearing Permit. Those two Permits if they were issued, valid or not, have nothing to do with the Permit that's supposed to be valid in place to continue construction. So therefore without a valid Permit to continue construction how do you get vested rights on what you're spending if you can't move forward? 

Mr. Golden: We could move forward.

Mr. Hughes: Without a Permit? 

Mr. Golden: Eventually we would have had to have gotten a Permit.

Mr. Hughes: Well let's stay with what I outlined here. I'm looking for the valid Permit that allows you to propel the project forward and there is none as far as I can see.              

Mr. Golden: Well the Clearing and Grading Permit allowed us to propel the project forward.

Mr. Hughes: That's a corporation Permit. That was a condition of an approval and has nothing to do with this here.

Mr. Golden: No that wasn't a condition of approval at all. There is nothing in the approval that said…

Mr. Hughes: Really. That's not what I read.

Mr. Golden: There is nothing in the Planning Board site plan that said that you had to get a Clearing and Grading Permit.

Mr. Hughes: That's Town law…it shouldn't be a…

Mr. Golden: No, its not.

Mr. Hughes: It is. If you're going to move a certain amount of earth you have to have a Clearing and Grading…if you're going to cut trees…

Mr. Golden: I'll defer but if in fact the work that you are going to be doing in clearing and grading is in conjunction with an approved site plan you can get a Building Permit to do this work.

Mr. Hughes: Its preparatory. Its preparatory and its not a valid Permit to move the construction part of project forward. I don't go along with it.

Mr. Golden: And the Clearing and Grading Permit was still valid until essentially revoked by the Building Inspector on April 14, we still had time left to go on that Clearing and Grading Permit. 

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Canfield?

Mr. Hughes: Well, I'm not done yet I…

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. But I think maybe he wants to answer your question.

Mr. Hughes: But Jerry before… 

Mr. Canfield: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: Can I finish up with the other part of this? When you say that there's a considerable amount of investment how can you be racking up money if you don't have a valid Permit to operate on and say that its under the guise of that Permit that I'm investing this money? I don't see it.

Mr. Golden: I do.

Mr. Hughes: Well that's what you're paid to do…

Mr. Golden: No. 

Mr. Hughes: And that's what I'm paid to do. I'm paid to protect the Town.

Mr. Golden: Well no, I…I…I think that you're…you're…you're paid, with all due respect, to go ahead and listen and try to understand and try to make decisions. I was a little chagrined at the fact that you seem to, in the beginning before I even spoke that you had already said that you were not going to be voting in this favor and I'm hoping that I was able to open up your mind to that.  And I'm not…

Mr. Hughes: My mind is entirely open and I…

Mr. Golden: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: …I didn't realize that you read minds but I'll keep that in mind. 

Mr. Golden: I didn't read minds. I was listening to what you had said in the beginning and I do not. Excuse me?

Mr. Donovan: I'm sorry.

Mr. Golden: I am not paid to simply say whatever my client wants me to say.

Mr. Hughes: Well I wasn't inferring that, if I could…if I was allowed to finish my sentence at that point, you're paid here to make the best possible presentation for your applicant.

Mr. Golden: Absolutely.

Mr. Hughes: Would you be just as surprised if you got this tonight as I would?

Mr. Golden: No I think that I have…

Mr. Hughes: You wouldn't? 

Mr. Golden: No.

Mr. Hughes: Oh. 

Chairperson Cardone: Go ahead. 

Mr. Canfield: Jerry Canfield, Town of Newburgh, on behalf of the Code Compliance Department for the Building Department I respectfully…respectfully request that the Board hold this Hearing open until the Code Compliance Department has counsel representative here to present the Building Department's case. I'm certain some of your questions that have been raised with respect and I also decline comment to answer any questions as far as procedure because of the nature of this request. I request that the Town have the opportunity to have a counsel present to answer any questions and present the Building Department's side and the justification for the request.

Mr. Hughes: If you would answer one question, there was a revocation of a Permit in this situation?

Mr. Canfield: Not that I'm aware of.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: But I think he just said he doesn't want to answer any questions and I…I…

Mr. Hughes: Well I appreciate his…

Mr. Canfield: I was going to tell him no but I didn't want to do that.

Mr. Hughes: He knows I am going to find out.

Chairperson Cardone: As I said earlier, I do think that the Town attorney may have some input and I think that Mr. Canfield has a right to be represented and I would ask for a motion to hold the Hearing open until August 27th.

Mr. Hughes: So moved.        

Mr. Manley: I would make that motion.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Ms. Drake: Second. 

Ms. Gennarelli: I'm sorry. Who was the first on that? I heard two. Jim? O.K. And Brenda is second. Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Golden: May I be allowed to comment on that?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Golden: O.K. Thank you. One I'd be happy to have the Building Inspector here and I would ask your indulgence to be able to ask him questions with respect to whatever his presentation is. Secondly, it certainly seems, certainly rather unusual to me that the Town attorney would want to weigh in on a variance. I can't for the life of me figure out other than to inject something that's not appropriate for this Board for the Town attorney to be presenting its own presentation in a request for relief that this Board is allowed to grant. But this Board obviously can do and follow the advice of counsel as to what it will permit and how it will allow this to proceed.

Chairperson Cardone: And I would ask counsel to respond to that.  

Mr. Donovan: Just briefly, I don't know the nature obviously I received an e-mail. I actually don't know what time the e-mail came because I check my e-mails from home. I left the office about a quarter to six and I left to come here about 6:30 and I checked by emails at home for my office e-mail. There was an e-mail from Mr. Sculley saying that he was just apprised of the Hearing and asked that it be held open until August. Whether he will make a presentation, what he will do, I frankly don't know. I have not had a conversation with him or Mr. Taylor so what they will or will not do I don't know. There has been a request. You have the right to hold the Hearing open which you have already done but that's clearly within your right to do that and then you can make a determination on the best way to proceed when the parties are present in August.   

Mr. Manley: It hasn't been uncommon that the Town has sent a representative. There have been cases in the past that…

Chairperson Cardone: That is correct.

Mr. Manley: …since I've been here that they have represented and provided information that was germane to the Board.

Mr. Golden: And that's possible, I would think in most cases though that it deals with issues that are relevant to the standards that this Board is granting say on an area variance or a use variance where the Town might have some information relative to character of neighborhood and other things that are within the proper consideration. Here we're dealing with an interpretation of the code and believe me, and I think your counsel will advise you that the personal intentions or statements of Town Board Members even either now or at the time that this law was passed is not relevant to your determinations on an interpretation and I don't think that the Town Board has any valid input with respect to common law vesting which is also purely within your purview.

Mr. Donovan: Well I'm not going to prejudge or decide what…how we will respond to anything because I don't know what the input will be so we'll take it as it comes in August.

Mr. Hughes: I have another question if I may? And counsel, if you will? What do you consider substantial investment? What's the ratio figure percentage of the total value of the project and what you think the…?

Mr. Donovan: Well that would make this all very easy.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. So, you know…

Mr. Donovan: As I said before, I mean, there's not a…the courts will say not a bright line rule, there's not a hard and fast rule.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Donovan: If you could say, you know, twenty percent, twenty-one percent, thirty point two percent…you have to evaluate the facts as they're presented to us and deal with each situation on a case by case basis.

Mr. Hughes: And I understand that it is generic in that respect but without real solid numbers how would we calculate or formulate an opinion? And I hope I haven't offended you but you're a very fine attorney but I'm here trying to nail this thing down…

Mr. Golden: I want you t nail it down.

Mr. Hughes: …and its not a pretty situation here on any end of it but for us to more clearly understand what's the big nut and what's the money that's been spent, you know, how are they linked to each other in a proportion? To me it doesn't seem to be substantial. 

Mr. Golden: Well again, I think the Kadin case clearly said and as counsel just noted is that every case has to be looked at on its own merits. It’s a case-by-case situation.

Mr. Hughes: Of course.

Mr. Golden: There is not a single case that I recall reading on common law vesting that made some kind of reference to what was the overall value of the case and the percentage, what was spent so far to determine whether or not it was substantial expense. I think here we have four hundred and fifty thousand dollars that was spent on this. I think by any measure that's a substantial expense in today's dollars. I don't think anybody on the Board them self or anybody would say that spending four hundred and fifty thousand dollars is not a substantial. That's my approach to it since the courts have not generated any specific formula as to how you determine it.

Mr. Hughes: Well and thank you for answering that but I read in here some figures that have lots of zeros to the right and they're not in line with what you're telling…

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Hughes, we've held this open until next month and if I…

Mr. Hughes: Sure.

Chairperson Cardone: …could ask if, you know, we could get on with the agenda for tonight?

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Certainly.       

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Golden: Thank very much. I do appreciate the patience that all of you are showing. I realize that its very tiresome and you were all very intent that. I thank you again, sincerely.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you answering all those questions. 
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JOANN FERRETTI-REED 

404 & 398 CANDLESTICK HILL ROAD, NBGH

   & FRANK GRECO 

(6-1-55.1 & 55.2) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the lot area, lot width, front yard setback and side yards setbacks for the pre-existing, non-conforming residence on Lot #2 of the two-lot subdivision.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Joann Ferretti-Reed and Frank Greco.               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, July 14th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday July 15th. The applicant sent out twenty-four registered letters, twenty were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: And I do have a report from the Orange County, which recommends Local Determination. You may begin, use the microphone and just for the record identify yourself.

Mr. Doce: I'm still Vince Doce, here now to represent Joann Reed on a very clear cut application for area variances for a parcel of property located on Candlestick Hill Road, here in the Town of Newburgh. The property is located in an A/R zone and my client Joann Reed owns a piece of property that is essentially one hundred and, I mean, ninety-two feet in width and some three hundred and twenty feet let's say in depth and its an undersized lot. The house has been existing many years going back at least to 1950 or so and on this piece of property she has a pool, a little out building and she merely wants to make a non-conforming lot a little larger. The reason we're here for the variance is because in making the lot larger she still doesn't bring it up to the existing zoning so there's a twelve foot side yard that has an existing building to a side yard to the right to a parcel that has a house on it, that can't be increased. She is setback some thirty-five feet, I believe, from the road, that cannot be increased. She is buying property to the east so she has a bigger yard for her children that is being increased however the total side yards are required of eighty feet will not be met because she will have in effect, I believe, total side yards of…sixty-four feet as opposed to the eighty that is required. She's not creating any need for a variance. She is taking a lot that's undersized, with undersized setbacks and increasing it. Area she is increasing also from thirty-five thousand…up to thirty-five thousand square feet, forty thousand required is required. The point being she is taking a small lot making it larger which is not making it as large as she would need under the zoning. She is making what you might call a poor situation much, much better. The other lot involved is a very large lot of some twelve acres that's not effected materially at all, no setbacks, no area, nothing is effected its just that there is a twenty foot strip that's being added in to my client's property. Nothing is going to change much from what it is today because she is on a small lot and she is going to be on a bigger lot and it still isn't going to meet the zoning regulations.

Ms. Drake: Does she currently own the lot in the green? The bigger lot?

Mr. Doce: No, this is owned by Mr. Greco, she owns the orange lot. She wants to buy this pink strip from Mr. Greco. It's going to make her lot a little wider. 

Chairperson Cardone: Is there any reason why she didn't or maybe he didn't want to, I don't know the answer, why she didn't buy more land to make it even wider? 

Mr. Doce: Mr. Greco did not want to really sell any land but he felt that he wanted to be a good neighbor and try to help her in making it a little bit larger and if he sold more land the variance would still be necessary because the difficulty is mostly to the south where it’s a…

Mr. Donovan: West.

Mr. Doce: West, I'll get it right, where its twelve feet now it will always be twelve feet.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Doce: Because that's an existing lot with an existing house on it. She can't increase that in any way. To the front she can't buy anything in a roadbed so that's going to be still a variance necessary. The only thing that could be helpful a little bit is total side yards if she bought a little more.

Chairperson Cardone: That's what I was thinking of the total side yard.

Mr. Doce: But he won't sell her any more and our choice is either to leave it as it is in orange or to make the situation a little bit better by getting the pink piece.

Mr. Hughes: What does it leave the width of the nose of that thing there, Vinnie?

Mr. Doce: Here?

Mr. Hughes: The green part.

Mr. Doce: That's two hundred and ten feet almost there.

Mr. Hughes: So it's not a case of that's a fifty-foot right of way and he doesn't want to give up his way to get in there? 

Mr. Doce: Well he just doesn’t want to give up anything to the front of his…to the front of his building. His house is here. He'd like to keep what he has there at least. He'd really like to keep the whole thing but like I say, Mrs. Reed has two children that she…have some impairment and she would like to make her yard bigger so the children could play in the yard and not on the neighbor's property. 

Mr. Hughes: Counsel, are we allowed to extend a non-conformity and not make a real lot?

Mr. Donovan: Are we allowed to? Well, because we are going to require that that would be attached. That's why he's deleting the one lot line and putting a new one so its not going to be a…

Mr. Hughes: Right but we're still not getting what we need on side yards with the addition because of the one side no matter what you do it still remains.

Mr. Donovan: That's correct. Are you allowed to do this? The answer is yes. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: I give shorter answers as the night goes on.

Mr. Hughes: That's good. I have nothing else. Thank you, Vinnie. 

Mr. Doce: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Are there any other questions from the Board?  Any questions or comments from the public? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 10:19 PM)
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JOANN FERRETTI-REED 

404 & 398 CANDLESTICK HILL ROAD, NBGH

   & FRANK GRECO 

(6-1-55.1 & 55.2) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the lot area, lot width, front yard setback and side yards setbacks for the pre-existing, non-conforming residence on Lot #2 of the two-lot subdivision.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Joann Ferretti-Reed and Frank Greco, seeking area variances for the lot area, lot width, front yard setback and side yards setbacks for the pre-existing, non-conforming residence on Lot #2 of the two-lot subdivision. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: Its too bad she can't get more land but I guess its fortunate that she can get some land to give her a little more land for her children. 

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we approve.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.
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IGNACIO TIRADO


159 MEADOW HILL ROAD, NBGH






(102-12-3) R-1 ZONE

 Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yards setbacks to build a rear deck on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Ignacio Tirado.               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, July 14th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday July 15th. The applicant sent out twenty-two registered letters, thirteen were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Chairperson Cardone: I know you've had a long wait.

Mr. Tirado: My name is Ignacio Tirado, 159 Meadow Hill Road and I'm applying for an area variance for the building of a 16' x 12' rear deck. I already have a 10' x 10' deck on the existing. I'm just looking to upgrade just for personal use. And, I believe it won't obstruct any views or cause any detriment to the neighborhood.

Ms. Eaton: Was the deck on the house when you bought it?

Mr. Tirado: Yes, this was the first home; I bought this house back in '99 and it was built in '98.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Tirado: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 10:21 PM)
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IGNACIO TIRADO


159 MEADOW HILL ROAD, NBGH






(102-12-3) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yards setbacks to build a rear deck on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Ignacio Tirado, 159 Meadow Hill Road, seeking area variances for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yards setbacks to build a rear deck on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Manley: The current deck that's on there now is a little bit older so they'd be replacing it with a newer deck and really they're not looking for a larger, much larger deck. I don't see a problem with it. 

Ms. Drake: And where its already 15.7 feet it will 15.7 feet still so they're not decreasing the conformity.   

Mr. Maher: I'll make a motion we approve the application.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.
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ENTERPRISE RENT-A-CAR

400 AUTO PARK PLACE, NBGH







(97-2-11.2) IB ZONE 

Applicant is seeking an interpretation as to whether or not the use proposed is permitted in the IB Zone. 

Chairperson Cardone: And I just have to ask is there anyone here from Enterprise Rent-A-Car?

No Response.

Chairperson Cardone: Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight's applications. And I would ask you if you would wait out into the hallway, in the interest of time, and we will call you back in.
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Chairperson Cardone: Everyone has a copy of the minutes from June and had an opportunity to read them? Do we have any corrections, additions, deletions? 

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we approve the minutes.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor say Aye?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. The motion is carried. Is there any other business?

Mr. Manley: Just with respect to the held open from February 26th, was there going to be a resolution to that on the agenda? Enterprise.

Mr. Donovan: No, we had written them a letter.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Donovan: We had written them a letter that said that if you don't show up your application would be deemed withdrawn. 

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: And he didn't. That's why I asked if anyone was here from Enterprise. 

Mr. Manley: As of this meeting that's over, right? 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to adjourn?

 Mr. Maher: So moved.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor say Aye?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone:  The motion is carried. The meeting is adjourned.
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